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For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=t—HLFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —F-IF
HK$'million HK$'million Change
BEET BEBTT
Operating Results REEE
Revenue Wz 316.5 304.6 3.9%
Profit for the year attributable to AR B EHE AEMG
equity holders of the Company F R A 32.3 21.6 49.5%
Net profit margin % HEFE % 10.2% 7.0%
Gross profit margin % EFE% 38.0% 37.6%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &R EZAZF (GEL) 6.47 5.19 24.7%
Dividend payout ratio kB 99.9% 92.7%

As at 31 March

MR=A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-hF —ET—EF
HK$'million HK$ 'million Change
BEBT BEBTT
Financial Position B AR R
Total assets BEBRE 237.8 253.1 (6.0%)
Total equity B 161.0 164.8 (2.3%)
Bank balance and deposit RITAEER AT 118.2 134.0 (11.8%)
Key Financial Ratios FEHBLLR
Return on equity (%) FEZS [ ¥R(%) 20.1% 13.1%
Gearing ratio (%) BEBEBLE(%) 12.9% 21.8%

R ———
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Business Review

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group"”) recorded a revenue of HK$316,547,000,
increased by 3.9% as compared to last year; and a net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$32,335,000 for
the year, representing a substantial increase of 49.9% as compared
to last year. Gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2015 increased from 37.6% of the last year to 38.0%; while
the net profit margin recorded a slight increase from 7.0% to 10.2%,
due to the decrease in the administration expenses as a result of the
absence of listing expenses in the year ended 31 March 2015.

The past year has been an eventful one for Hong Kong’s economy,
with shockwaves in areas ranging from politics to real estate. The
Occupy Central movement, despite coming to an end in December,
leaves behind remnants of uncertain long term economic impact.

The strengthening of the USD will likely weaken Hong Kong's gross
domestic product growth somewhat through lower net exports due
to the linked exchange rate between the two currencies. On the other
hand, lower import prices may exert downward pressure on headline
inflation.

Notwithstanding the external distractions, the Group has delivered
yet another year of growth in profitability, which is an achievement of
our established extensive sales channels under different trade names
in Hong Kong, which comprise mainly our stores, websites and other
channels, where our capability continues to grow.

| am confident that our seasoned management team who are focusing
on prioritization and delivery of our strategic plan will see the Group
reach new heights of success in FY2015/16 and beyond. The Group's
continual growth in website’s sales coupled with the contribution
from rapid expansion of Malaysia joint venture business delivered
satisfactory financial results over the years.

£ e

BE-_ZT-—RAF=A=+—H1IFE &2
AINEMBAR(ATHE [ AEE]) %5
I %5316,547,000/8 7T + BAF EFA3.9% ¢
NEAFEARAEZFEAEBGERT
32,335,000/ 70 + BEAF KIE EF49.9% ©
AEEHE-_ZT—RAFZA=ZT—HILFE
MEFEHEFHIITE6% EFE38.0% :
A Fl RBISBEMEFA > B7.0% EF
£102% WIHHREBEEZZT—HAF=A
St+—HUEFETE EFTRAIMBREITRE
FBFTER °

BEREEFNRBEXIBURNREFETT EH
HE AMONEE BEERTREDIN
TAKR  BAIEEEETRENTHEN

By 488
T2 o

HRETERBTIMEEE 2HERBEE
K RTIEBRRATREGHI SSAB H A FE -
MMBRAMEEREEERE -5 — 7
H REMNEQERKSREREBREE
TTHES -

BEXIIBEREFE  AKBN2H5—(E
BNBEENFE  HWHREBBEMARETES
RARHERMELNEZHERE(XTEH
BPIOEE - Wt REMREAEK) MEUSH
AR - MBFILERE N TR B R -

AARE BA-BBEINRBELTH
TREEHASNEREEEARAEER -
-1/ RFHRFERTRAENE
e RERAKEREREROMEHE -
LERATEECEEBRER - ~A5H
BUREIES AMBR M TERE

2014/155%  eprint EEHR AT 5



Chairman’s Statement

ERHmE

Prospects

Looking ahead, business and consumer confidence remain fragile. The
slowing down of the Chinese economy, the fragile recovery in the
US economy, the stagnant European market and the strengthening
of the Hong Kong dollar all have cast shadows on the local economic
growth. The growth of the Group’s turnover in the year was better
than expected.

During the year of 2015, the Company replicated its success by
business expansion into new product markets, which was the
formation of e-banner Limited, a joint venture of the Group with
40% shareholding initially, later on 1 April 2015, the Group acquired
additional 11% and increased its shareholding to 51% (become
a subsidiary of the Group) and it can create synergy effect with
the existing printing business of the Group. On 30 March 2015,
the Company entered into a framework agreement with Shantou
Dongfeng Printing Co. Ltd (Shanghai Stock Exchange’s stock code:
601515) (“Shantou Dongfeng”) to form a project company in China
for internet cloud printing business. The Company expects to explore
more business opportunities with Shantou Dongfeng in the future.

The Group is well positioned for the future and is confident in its
ability to deliver superior long term performance for its customers, its
shareholders and the communities in which it conducts business. The
Group is confident in its business prospects and is looking forward to
an overall satisfactory performance in FY2015/16.

Appreciation

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (“Board”),
I would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their persistent support
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this
opportunity to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent

contribution to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

She Siu Kee William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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Management Discussion and Analys
BEEENWR DN

Business Review

The Board is pleased to present to its shareholders the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015. The Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$316,547,000, an increase of 3.9%
compared with that of the corresponding year ended 31 March 2014.
Gross profit margin was 38.0% which was 0.4% higher than the
corresponding year ended 31 March 2014. The Group’s audited profit
attributable to equity holders for the year ended 31 March 2015 was
HK$32,335,000, representing an increase of 49.9% as compared with
that of the corresponding year ended 31 March 2014. The increase
was mainly due to the decrease in the administrative expenses of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 as a result of the absence
of the listing expenses which incurred in the corresponding year ended
31 March 2014.

The Group has a leading position in supplying online printing services
and customised printed products which target at a large and diverse
customer group comprising primarily small and medium enterprises,
design houses, education institutes and individual customers, for
instance, students. As at 31 March 2015, the Group has 17 retail
stores, 4 localised websites which provide internet-based graphic
design software and editing tools that allow customers to design their
desired products by themselves, and computer-integrated printing
facilities in Hong Kong.

During the year, eprint Holdings Limited (“eprint Holdings"”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, established a joint venture
company, e-banner Limited (“e-banner”) with an independent third
party. eprint Holdings has a 40% shareholding in e-banner, which
is principally engaged in developing, producing, marketing and sale
of the banners, display stands, posters and display partitions and
other related products in Hong Kong. The formation of e-banner
can diversify the Group's business and product portfolio and create
synergy effect with the existing printing business of the Group.

In July 2014, e-banner received a writ of summons issued against it
and other twelve defendants for, inter alia, the relief of an injunction
restraining e-banner from competing in the business of and soliciting
customers of the plaintiffs, and claim for, inter alia, the damages for
conspiracy and interference with the plaintiffs’ trade or business. The
Company has been informed by e-banner on 7 January 2015 that the
court issued the judgment on 31 December 2014 that injunctions have
been granted against four out of the thirteen defendants. e-banner is
one of the four defendants which are subject to the injunctions. The
Board considers that the judgment would not have material adverse
impact on the operation of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE R MM

Business Review (continued)

On 22 September 2014, the controlling shareholders of the Company,
being Mr. She Siu Kee William, Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki, Mr. Lam Shing
Kai, Mr. Leung Wai Ming and Mr. Leung Yat Pang, disposed of an
aggregate of 61,875,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 12.375% of the total issued shares of the Company,
to Hong Kong Luck Investment Company Limited, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Shantou Dongfeng. Shantou Dongfeng is
interested in the Company's online self-service printing platform and
cloud printing services system. The Company expects to explore more
business opportunities with Shantou Dongfeng in the future.

On 22 September 2014, eprint Digital Holding Limited (“eprint
Digital”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement for the acquisition of the 30% interest
in Invoice Limited (“Invoice”) at a consideration of HK$2,000,000
(“Acquisition”). Upon completion of the Acquisition on 29 September
2014, Invoice became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The Acquisition constituted a de minimis connected transaction
and exempted from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Acquisition enables the Group to enjoy greater flexibility in its
operation to cope with its future growth.

In October 2014, the Group formed a new company named “EPRINT
AUSTRALIA Pty Ltd”, which will be engaged in printing business in
Australia. The formation of the aforesaid company can diversify the
Group's business in different markets. The Company may introduce
other investors into the project. The operation of its business is
expected to commence in the next financial year.

In March 2015, eprint Digital established a subsidiary, Ebanner
Solution Sdn. Bhd. (“Ebanner Solution”) with an independent third
party. eprint Digital, through an investment holding subsidiary, Digital
Printing Centre Limited, has a 51% shareholding in Ebanner Solution,
which is principally engaged in developing, producing, marketing and
sale of banners, display stands, posters and display partitions and
other related products in Malaysia. The formation of Ebanner Solution
can diversify the Group’s business and expand its business to the
overseas market.

8 eprint Group Limited  Annual Report 2014/15
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Corporate Achievements BERH
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B TR AT

Corporate Achievements (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R WM

Outlook

Although the Group was affected by fierce industry competition,
high cost of production and shortage of labour supply, the Group
has still maintained a stable gross profit margin. For the coming
year, the Hong Kong market, which is the Group’s major market, is
expected to face challenges due to the unstable market environment.
Nevertheless, the Group will continue to strive for diversifying its
business, strengthening the development of products with higher
profit margin, obtaining engagements from new customers and
market, enhancing the production processes, reinforcing internal
controls and implementing stringent control over the cost in order to
achieve stable profit growth of the Group. Meanwhile, the Group will
look for new business opportunities from time to time to strengthen
its market position. The Group is confident in its business prospects
and is looking forward to an overall satisfaction performance in the
coming year.

On 1 November 2014, the Group and Invoice were certified by
the Accredited Certification International Limited according to the
requirements of ISO 14001:2004 (Environmental Management System
Certification). On 15 December 2014, the Group received a certificate
of commendation from the Environmental Protection Department for
its participation and contribution to the carbon footprint disclosure
under “Carbon Footprint Repository for Listed Companies in Hong
Kong”. These certifications further enhance the Group’s resource
efficiency.

On 30 March 2015, eprint Holdings as purchaser and TBC Group
Limited as vendor, entered into the sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which eprint Holdings acquired an addition 11% of the
issued shares of e-banner from TBC Group Limited. Upon completion
on 1 April 2015, e-banner was owned as to 51% by eprint Holdings
and became a subsidiary of the Group and the management of the
Group believes that the operation of e-banner would create synergy
effect with the Group in terms of customers and technologies and
considers that the acquisition represented an opportunity for the
Group to further widen its earning base and enhance its capital
utilization efficiency. The Group plans to expand the business of
e-banner to overseas markets, including Malaysia and Australia.

On 30 March 2015, the Company and Shantou Dongfeng entered into
the framework agreement for the formation of the project company
for the internet design and printing business in the PRC excluding the
existing business of the Group and Shantou Dongfeng. The Company
and Shantou Dongfeng will invest a total of RMB25 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$31.25 million) in the project company and
their equity interests in the project company will be 30% and 70%
respectively. The parties targeted to complete the setting up of the
project company before 30 June 2015 in the PRC and to launch the
internet platform and relevant products by the end of 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE R MM

OUtIOOk (Continued)

Under the leadership of the Board, the management of the Group has
formed a broad consensus in response to the key improvement areas
in the existing business operation and market expansion in order to
further enhance the Group’s overall competitiveness. The Group will
continue to strengthen its market position and increase the market
share by making use of the following competitive advantages:

o Well-positioned to seize enormous online market potential

o Comprehensive information technology infrastructure and
unigue eprint system which is automatically operated

o Well-recognised local brand
Financial Review
Revenue

Income from the provision of printing services in Hong Kong increased
by approximately HK$12.0 million or 3.9% from approximately
HK$304.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately
HK$316.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2015. Such increase
was primarily due to the increase of average monthly sales orders
notwithstanding the slight decrease in the bound book printing
sales as compared with last year. The following table sets forth a
breakdown of the revenue by service category and their respective
percentage of the total revenue for the years indicated.
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2015 2014

—E-AF —Pu4F

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET AT
Advertising printing &4 Bl 129,992 41.1% 125,240 41.2%
Bound book printing it EZH R 87,131 27.5% 91,161 29.9%
Stationery printing =820 88,875 28.1% 79,527 26.1%
Other services HAt R 10,549 3.3% 8,634 2.8%
Total HBET 316,547 100.0% 304,562 100.0%

Sales mix remained relatively stable and advertising printing was our
primary printing service that accounted for approximately 41.1% and
41.2% of our total revenue for year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
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Financial Review (continued)

Revenue (Continued)

BBl )
W)

2015 2014

—E-RF —E—F

Sales Channels HK$'000 HK$'000

SHERE FHET T
Stores s 115,968 36.6% 110,470 36.3%
Websites 48 uh 126,086 39.8% 115,228 37.8%
Others (Note) E b (f3E) 74,493 23.6% 78,864 25.9%
Total 4=t 316,547 100.0% 304,562 100.0%

Note: “Others” refers to revenue derived from orders received over the telephone,
through e-mail, e-print mobile application and “Photobook” program.

Websites sales channel contributed approximately 39.8% of total
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2015, which accounted for
approximately 9.4% increase as compared with that of the year ended
31 March 2014. Such increase was primarily due to the continuous
improvement in our online self-service ordering platform.

Other income

Other income primarily comprises sales of scrap materials, such as
used zinc printing plates and paper scrap, pre-press processing and
customer service fee income, rental income, management fee and
license fee income received from the Group’s joint ventures.

Other losses — net

Other losses — net primarily comprises net loss on disposal of plant
and equipment, net foreign exchange gain and gain on disposal of a
subsidiary.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of distribution costs,
handling charges for electronic payments received, and store rentals
as well as advertising and marketing expenses. Selling and distribution
expenses represent approximately 6.3% and 5.8% of the revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Financial Review (continued)
Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses primarily comprise directors’ fees, staff costs,
outsourced customer support expenses, information technology
support services expenses, office rental and utilities, depreciation,
internet and telephone expenses, professional expenses and other
miscellaneous administrative expenses. Administrative expenses
represent approximately 22.3% and 24.7% of the total revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, respectively. The decrease
in administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2015
was primarily due to the absence of the professional expenses of
approximately HK$17.6 million which was incurred for the year ended
31 March 2014 in connection with the Company’s listing, offset by
the increase in directors’ fees and staff costs by approximately HK$6.7
million.

Finance income

Finance income primarily consists of interest income from bank
deposits and finance lease to a Group’s joint venture.

Finance costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses on bank
borrowings and finance charges on obligations under finance lease.

Share of profits of joint ventures — net

Share of profits of joint ventures — net represents the share of losses
or profits of the Group’s joint ventures for the year using equity
method of accounting. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Company had two entities jointly controlled in Hong Kong and one in
Malaysia, respectively, and one of them was disposed of during the
year. The profits were primarily due to the share of profit of E-Print
Solutions Sdn. Bhd. of approximately HK$2,746,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2015 which offsets the share of loss of e-banner of
approximately HK$2,637,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Profit and total income

Profit increased by approximately HK$10.9 million or 50.9%, from
approximately HK$21.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to
approximately HK$32.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2015.
Net profit margin also increased from approximately 7.0% for the year
ended 31 March 2014 to approximately 10.2% for the year ended
31 March 2015. The increases in net profit and net profit margin
were primarily due to the absence of the professional expenses of
approximately HK$17.6 million in connection with the Company’s
listing incurred during the year ended 31 March 2014.
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Financial Review (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Information

As at 31 March 2015, the total amount of bank deposit, bank
balances and cash of the Group was approximately HK$118.2 million,
a decrease of approximately HK$15.8 million compared with that as at
31 March 2014. The decrease was mainly arising from the repayment
of obligations under finance leases. As at 31 March 2015, the financial
ratios of the Group were as follows:

MEN LR M
BERBHER

Current ratio @
Gearing ratio @

BBl )

RZBE—RAF=A=+—H A&EERTTF
o RITEBRRIESBEEAA118,200,000
B o B _ZE-NFEF=ZA=+—HBELIH
15,800,000/ 7C c Z N FEHNEER
EHEBETEAAMB RZZZTE—HF=A
=+—8 AEEPBHLELT -

As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
= .
—ZE-EfF
=H=+-—H
2.3 2.3
12.9% 21.8%

Notes:

(1) Current ratio is calculated based on total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

(2) Gearing ratio is calculated based on total borrowings and obligation under finance
leases divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%.

Borrowings

The Group had bank borrowings as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March
2014 in the sum of approximately HK$3.8 million and HK$9.7 million,
respectively. All bank borrowings were made from banks in Hong
Kong and were repayable within one year. No financial instruments
were used for hedging purposes, nor were there any foreign currency
net investments hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging
instruments. The weighted average interest rates (per annum) were
2.4% and 5.0% for the year ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March
2014, respectively.

Treasury Policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the year. The Board closely monitors the Group's
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's
assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time. Surplus cash will be invested to meet
the Group’s cash need in support of the Group’s strategy direction
from time to time.

(1) REBLEDRERDEERUERD BEAE -

() EEBBLERNRBEERBEEEETETRIA
TS AT IA100% A E -

B&

AEBR-_E—HRF=ZA=+—HEZ=ZE
—mFE=ZA=Z+—HEBTEED Y
3,800,000 7T 9,700,000 T » AT A R1T
BEEYHRESMRITREE  WAR—FRNE
EoMEcR T ARELR  TEEMINE
BEFERBAMNERRE SHEMEFTA
Hih - HE_FE—FHF-_A=Z+—"HBHEZE
—NFE=ZA=Z+—HLEFEMMEFH(F)
FED RN E2.4%%5.0% °

E# R

AEBEHEERBRRRREENYBER
TEHMERFAAFRENRBESM
N BFERIERATENRDESMN
o NERAKEEE - AENREMAEN
MBECRBAITKENHEHESER - BX
FAKBETE 2RI - BRNRS KA
FREAMEAKENRERE -

2014/1555  eprint EEER AT 15



Vlanagement Discussion and

EEE R MM

Financial Review (continued)
Capital Structure

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 3 December 2013. There has been no change in the
capital structure of the Company since that date. The capital of the
Company comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group has capital commitments
of HK$1.6 million for investment in a joint venture and purchase
of computer equipment, and HK$0.9 million for purchase of
machineries, respectively.

Significant Investments Held

Except for the investments in joint ventures, the Group did not hold
any significant investment in equity interest in any other company
during the year.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Except for the aforesaid investment, the Group did not have other
plans for material investments and capital assets.

Material Acquisitions

Except for the acquisition of the remaining 30% of the issued shares
of Invoice in the sum of HK$2.0 million on 29 September 2014, the
Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
or joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and its business is
supported by an information technology support services centre
located in the PRC. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from the exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars.
The Group does not hedge its foreign exchange risk as its exposure
to foreign exchange risk is low as the Group’s cash flows mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Charge of Assets
At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group pledged the plant and
machinery with a carrying value of approximately HK$40.7 million

and HK$44.1 million respectively, as collaterals to secure the Group’s
obligations under finance leases.
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Financial Review (continued)
Use of Proceeds from the Share Offer

The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 3
December 2013 and raised a net proceed from its initial public
offering of approximately HK$66.5 million. During the year ended
31 March 2015 and the period between the listing date and 31
March 2014, approximately HK$17.8 million and HK$4.8 million,
respectively, of the net proceed from the listing were utilised in
accordance with the proposed applications set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The
unused proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group invested approximately HK$7.7 million
in property, plant and equipment, represented a reduction of about
41.2% from capital expenditure of last year.

Employees and Emolument Policies

At 31 March 2015, the Group had 367 full time employees. There
is no significant change in the Group’s emolument policies. On top
of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to the Group's
performance as well as individual’s performance. Other staff benefits
include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme in Hong Kong and the provision of pension funds,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by the Group pursuant
to the PRC rules and regulations and the prevailing regulatory
requirements of the PRC. On 9 May 2014, the Board resolved the
cancellation of 12,500,000 pre-IPO share options granted on 13
November 2013 pursuant to the pre-IPO share option scheme adopted
on 13 November 2013. For further details regarding the cancellation,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 May 2014.

Dividends

On 19 November 2014, the Board approved the declaration of
an interim dividend of HK2.93 cents per ordinary share, totalling
HK$14,650,000 to its then shareholders (2013: HK$80 per ordinary
share, totaling HK$8,000,000). The interim dividend was paid on
18 December 2014. On 19 June 2015, the Board recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$3.53 cents per ordinary share,
totalling HK$17,650,000 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 12 August 2015 (2014:
HK$0.04 per ordinary share, totaling HK$20,000,000).
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance the
shareholders’ value.

Corporate Governance Practice

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company was in
compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code except for
the deviation as explained below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
at present separate the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer. Mr. She Siu Kee William is the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both chairman and chief executive officer in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and
enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for
the Group. The Board further believes that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is
adequately ensured by the current Board which comprises experienced
and high calibre individuals with sufficient number thereof being non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
had met all code provisions set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 March 2015.

The Board will continue to review and further improve the Company’s
corporate governance practices and standards, so as to ensure its
business activities and decision-making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

18 eprint Group Limited  Annual Report 2014/15

ARBHNERRFEEEQKFERER
EHEBARBEMNTE  ERAENEE - UE
TR EE -

EEERER

AN R B SR A ST T R (T BT
A1) B S+ TSI 8 2 A TR B2
AR ) FFI AT RIEX e AR DR &R
378 -

RBE-_ZT-—AF=A=+—HBILFER
ARBEEBTREERTRMET A
0 METS SR LR R BR AN o

EEERTAHTAMMRIEA2AGRE - =
FMTHRAERACEADH  TSER—AE
F-ARABETBIFRTRAHBED
fl - RAEREBARBTERITHAER -
E=EeHERIRETRARACERRF —
A BHEGAEEAN-HEBEENFE - XA
BAREERE AMEMAAOEBRER
2 -E=SFME - BATLHED RBE
FEHIEXIBE MBAABEEREE
MEBHK B (HPBERABMBNIFNTESER
BIYJFMTER) MM ESTSIERRA T
S HE 7] il

B EXFAESN c EFERB > ARARE
—E-RF=A=t—HLFEACET
KERTRIPTEAFTA 5T R ©

ES
AN
=

EXeRRERT NBERARANEEER
FREIKF - UHERA R R EREE R
RERZIEERFRZRE -

EEEEESRS

A2 7 B R L 70 4 B B 8% + BT 8L b %
AABERITESR HHOEET ([ 28
FA)FHEBEERTEERBNTA
FH - MARBEFEHRTENE - AR
AER PEEERBE_T-—HEZ=F
=+— AR — B TR T AR
PR .




Corporate Governance Report
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Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as
well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and disposals,
annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital
transactions and other significant operational and financial matters.
The management was delegated the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.

The Board currently consists of ten Directors including two executive
Directors, four non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fung Hong Keung

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shing Kai
Mr. Leung Wai Ming
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki
Mr. Deng Xiaen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah

Mr. Chan Chi Yu

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen
Ms. Luk Mei Yan

Mr. She Siu Kee William, Mr. Lam Shing Kai, Mr. Leung Wai Ming,
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki and Mr. Leung Yat Pang (a former non-
executive Director resigned on 28 May 2015) entered into a deed
of confirmation dated 2 July 2013 confirming the existence of their
acting in concert arrangement to jointly control their respective
interest in the Company held through eprint Limited. Save as
aforesaid, the Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists
across the Board. The composition of the Board reflects the balanced
skills and experience for effective leadership. The biographical
information of the Directors are set out on pages 31 to 34 under
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall
business plans and evaluates the Group’s financial performance and
management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the Group's
management include the implementation of strategies approved by
the Board, the monitoring of operating budgets, the implementation
of internal control procedures, and the ensuring of compliance with
relevant statutory requirements and other rules and regulations.

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2015, 7 Board meetings were held.
All Directors were given an opportunity to include any matters in the
agenda for regular Board meetings, and were also given sufficient
time to review documents and information relating to matters to be
discussed in Board meetings in advance.

Name of Director

Mr. She Siu Kee William REBETE
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai (Note 2) RIAE ST (BT aE2)
Mr. Fung Hong Keung SRR ST
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MARESE
Mr. Leung Wai Ming (Note 2) PR ST (BT aE2)
Mr. Leung Yat Pang R—MEEE
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HREIHEE
Mr. Deng Xiaen (Note 1) BB BT (AET)
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah BEREEEL
Mr. Chan Chi Yu BRAGMEE
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen S ER SE
Ms. Luk Mei Yan PEER 4

Notes:

1. Mr. Deng Xiaen was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 1 December 2014, and 1 Board meeting was held after his
appointment.

2. Mr. Tsui Pak Wai resigned as an executive Director and Mr. Leung Yat Pang
resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company both on 28 May 2015.

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials, and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and has
the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.
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Board of Directors (continued)
General Meeting

During the year ended 31 March 2015, 1 general meeting of the MREBZE-_Z—HRE=A=+—HBItEER -
Company, being the 2014 annual general meeting, was held on 8 AAFTR-_ZE—mWE/N\ AN\ B EIT— KRR

August 2014.

Name of Director

Rg TN FRFBEFASG -

Number of
attendance

R

Mr. She Siu Kee William RIBESTE 1”1
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai (Note 2) TRIAESEE(H72) 11
Mr. Fung Hong Keung ISR ST 171
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MRS E 0N
Mr. Leung Wai Ming RERASE 1”1
Mr. Leung Yat Pang (Note 2) R—ReE(FaE2) 11
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HREIHELE on
Mr. Deng Xiaen (Note 1) BWEBLLENET) N/A A5
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah EREEELT 11
Mr. Chan Chi Yu BRAGHMTE 11
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen X ER SE A 1”1
Ms. Luk Mei Yan BEEB 4 1”1
Notes: FtsE -

HERTERETERARRENTES B2
—FEF+ZA—BER  ZRERASREEZER
appointment. BT o

1. Mr. Deng Xiaen was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company 1.
with effect from 1 December 2014, the general meeting was held before his

REZF-—AFAA—+/\B  HRHAELEREINT
EERRBEREREARFAFNTES -

2. Mr. Tsui Pak Wai resigned as an executive Director and Mr. Leung Yat Pang 2.
resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company both on 28 May 2015.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with =ZZ@aB85XRFHERFER @ FHI2FE B
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other HEF A @l H{W IR R A @ A B HHEITE
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their i @ WEHEIREL2HPRAE - EESEE
participation. The Board notes that the Chairman of the Board and the ARG EFE€TrELERLZES([EXEE
chairmen or, in their absence, other members of the audit committee € |) - IEREZE e ([IEREEe|) RFME
("“Audit Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination EBe&([HFMEE S |)FE(HEE KL
Committee”) and remuneration committee (“Remuneration [E)HMKE B EREHEFEANE - LA JEK
Committee”) of the Company should attend the annual general HIEFIRWEREER o

meeting to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.
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Board of Directors (continued) EEE
Directors’ Training =3

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should BIEMEEATAISFENEXEA6.51K @ 288
participate in continuous professional development to develop and BESHBETHEEETE LR  DIEET F 3
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to  H A LG BRI ESENBBEL MY
the board remains informed and relevant. EEeEHAEENTE -

All Directors have participated in continuous professional 2EEZEHFEEFEBEEARNATIES
development by way of attending seminars relating to their role asa ZEBE2Hse @ REAZEHEERE -
Director of the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year REZE-_Z—AF=A=1+—BILFERE
ended 31 March 2015 is set out below: BEMETEIZERZEROT

Attending or participating
in seminars/workshops relevant
to roles, functions and duties of

a listed company director

HERSEBE LT AR

EENAGC BEREMR
Name of Director ZHE TS
Mr. She Siu Kee William REBETE 4
Mr. Fung Hong Keung SERE ST 4
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MARESRE 4
Mr. Leung Wai Ming REEATE 4
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HREIHEE 4
Mr. Deng Xiaen BB B STE 4
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah EREEEL 4
Mr. Chan Chi Yu BRAGMTEE 4
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen SRR SE 4
Ms. Luk Mei Yan PEER 4 4

=,
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. She Siu Kee William, the Chairman of the Company, was also
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and efficient
overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board further believes
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by current Board which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient
number thereof being non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors.

Independent Non-executive Directors and non-
executive Directors

The four independent non-executive Directors are persons of high
calibre, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields
of accounting, company secretaryship, information technology or
management. With their experience gained from various sectors, they
provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties
and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent non-executive
Director gives an annual confirmation of his/her independence to
the Company, and the Company considers each of them to be
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a term of 3 years commencing from 3 December 2013 and are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”). Mr. Deng Xiaen has
signed a letter of appointment as a non-executive Director for a term
of three years commencing from 1 December 2014. Each of the other
non-executive Director has signed a letter of appointment for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Nomination Committee

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take
into account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates, especially their experience
in the printing business and/or other professional area.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 13
November 2013 with written terms of reference, which was aligned
with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

ERRATHAR

ARARETFERBERLERAREZER/ERR
TR - EFEHE - BR— /\Hﬁﬂ)‘é‘fi
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o FEMNBEREMBEIANEE 2 EEK
B - BEESE ARG BRZLHTEIE
ERNANBEMER Y MARKZES
EHREREENAT (AR ERRZARESE
FMTESRBULIFAITES MK - RA
KRB MBI ME R 2 T -

BYFHTEERIITES

E%?%Iétiﬂﬁ%%i@@ﬂﬁ% CRER
NAEAWE - BARMBRREESHELGEMN
RBEER - BRERENEERBERNE
B HEFSARBETHBREREEREMHR
R Hs o EBUFFATEZCRIELTRA
’%3 1316 Bt H B M A AL F) B L F S
C MARARRREBBIAL °

’i%‘%?%ﬁ#%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ@&ﬁﬂ BE-%—=
T-A=BER/HA=%F - /AETJ%K Gk
%%%%%%EE‘J(F%EE'JJ)E@@%}E HERLL
ERE-MDE_ZT-HNF+T_A—RERH
“FWNFRATESTZMEE - HRBIERTT
EXCFIVREE  VFEHBELHABAR
RE=F -

REEES

REBHEFRER -
MEMR BN - TIEER BERNIRER
BT %EJ WEREIRI M K&,/ R E M 4E
BAEXHBALR -

E=ZeRETEMREA

ARAR_F—=F+—A+=HXILRES
Z8e URBECEEATH -—HWNEE
BE®HE - REZEeNBRESEBAIRN
B X P AR A e A R BRI R o

H]]

/

2014/1555  eprint EEER AT 23



Corporate Governance Report
PEREARE

Nomination Committee (continved)

The Nomination Committee consists of two Independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen (as chairman)
and Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah, and an executive Director namely Mr. She
Siu Kee William.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identify qualified individuals
to become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
chief executive officer.

The Board adopted on 13 November 2013 the board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) and delegated certain duties under the
Policy to the Nomination Committee. The Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Company will also take into consideration
its own business model and specific needs from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the necessity for setting
measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Nomination Committee
held 2 meetings and (1) reviewed the Board composition, (2) reviewed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
(3) considered the re-election of retiring Directors and (4) considered
the nomination of Director.

Nomination Committee member

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen A ER SEE
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah EREEELT
Mr. She Siu Kee William RIBELE
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Number of
attendance

R

2/2
2/2
2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 13
November 2013 with written terms of reference, which was aligned
with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (as chairman) and
Mr. Chan Chi Yu and one executive Director, namely Mr. She Siu Kee
William.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy. The model of
Remuneration Committee described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of
the CG Code has been adopted by the Remuneration Committee,
which to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Remuneration Committee
held 2 meetings and (1) reviewed the remuneration structure for the
executive Directors and senior management, (2) recommended on the
cancellation of Pre-IPO share options and (3) recommended on the
remuneration of a new Director.

Remuneration Committee member

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah EEEEL
Mr. Chan Chi Yu PRER ST A&
Mr. She Siu Kee William KNPES A

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 13 November
2013. The purpose of the share option scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions of the eligible participants to motivate
them and to optimise their performance and efficiency for the
benefit of the Group and to attract or retain or otherwise maintain
on-going business relationships with the eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the
Group. Details of the share option scheme are set out in the Directors’
Report.

FMESE
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H R
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Remuneration Committee (continued)

The emolument payable to Directors will depend on their respective
contractual terms under employment contracts or service contracts, if
any, and will be fixed by the Board based on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Group and the
prevailing marketing conditions. Details of the Directors and senior
management’s emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set
out in Note 8 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 13 November
2013 with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the
code provisions under the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Luk Mei Yan (as chairlady), Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah
and Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim
and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of
the Company’s financial reporting function and their training
arrangement and budget) and the internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in
the review of the Company’s interim and annual reports. During the
year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings.

Name of Director

Ms. Luk Mei Yan BEER 4
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah BEREEEL
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen A ER SE
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Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee
reviewed, among others, the annual and interim results of the
Group, which were in the opinion of the Audit Committee that the
preparation of such consolidated financial statements and results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing internal control system of
the Group and also noted that review of the same shall be carried out
annually.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company’s corporate governance functions are carried out by the
Board pursuant to the code provisions as set out in the CG code.

The corporate governance functions currently performed by the Board
are to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance to comply with the CG Code and other legal
or regulatory requirements; to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Directors; to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board has reviewed the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance.
Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended to 31 March 2015, the remuneration payable or

paid to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), is
as follows:

Services rendered TR AR
— Audit services — B RS
— Non-audit services (Note) — IEEFTARFE (I 7E)

Note: The non-audit services provided by PwC include interim review service, tax services
and other related services.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Fung Hong Keung (“Mr. Fung”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 3 December 2013. The biographical
details of Mr. Fung are set out under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Fung had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at
the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

According to the Articles of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. The relevant address is as follows:

Flat A3, 1st Floor, Phase 3
Kwun Tong Industrial Centre
448-458 Kwun Tong Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders should follow the procedures set out in the sub-section
headed “Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”
above for putting forward proposals for discussion at general
meetings.

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where
the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which
relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on
by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions to be set out in the
notice of 2015 AGM will be voted by poll.

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the
following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the Stock Exchange’s website, and issue of other
announcements and shareholders’ circulars in accordance with
the continuing disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules;
and

o The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the results and cash flows of the Group for that
year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015, the Board has selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safequard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Internal Control

Management had implemented a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded,
proper accounting records are maintained, appropriate legislation
and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information are
provided for management and publication purpose and investment
and business risks affecting the Group are identified and managed.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board has conducted a
review of the system of internal control to ensure the effectiveness
and adequacy of the system. The review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Board considers that the Company has
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

Based on the results of the review, the Board has concluded that
the Group’s overall system of internal control has been effectively
exercised during the year. The Group will continue to improve its
system of internal control. The Board shall conduct such review at
least once annually.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEEABZEE

Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William (R#B &), aged 52, is the Chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is the founder of the
Group and has participated in the management of the Group since
October 2001.

Mr. She is primarily responsible for the overall management,
development and planning of the Group and has more than 20 years
of experience in the printing industry.

Mr. Fung Hong Keung (FEE3#), aged 52, is an executive Director,
company secretary and chief financial officer. He is responsible for
the supervision and management of the Group’s financial matters and
strategic planning of the Group. He joined the Group in May 2012.

Mr. Fung has approximately 23 years of experience in the field of
corporate finance and accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he
served as chief corporate services officer in 47 71 CFII) AHE R
‘A A] (Productivity (Shenzhen) Consulting Co., Ltd.) (a subsidiary of
the Hong Kong Productivity Council). Mr. Fung served as a financial
controller of Neo-Concept (Holdings) Co., Ltd. from March 2011 to
October 2011. He worked as an account manager in Hiway Textiles

Limited from March 2008 to January 2011.

He worked as senior position in Sanmina-SCI (NASDAQ stock code:
SANM) and IDT International Limited (stock code: 167) from May 1992
to January 2008.

He has been a member of China Committee and Taxation Committee
of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce since June 2015, a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Directors since January 2013, a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 2005 and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since December 2004.

Mr. Fung was awarded the graduate diploma in China marketing and
e-business from the University of Hong Kong School of Professional
and Continuing Education in November 2004 and the degree of
bachelor of arts in accountancy from Bolton University in October
2003.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki (3= ), aged 50, is a non-executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2005. He has approximately 10 years of
experience in corporate management.

Mr. Chong was awarded a diploma in marketing from the Chartered
Institute of Marketing for fulfilling the requirements of the institute’s
examiners at the diploma examination held in June 1991. He also
obtained a certificate in marketing from Vocational Training Council
in June 1989 and a higher certificate in electronic engineering
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1987.

Mr. Lam Shing Kai (#7#&{£), aged 42, is a non-executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2008. Mr. Lam has approximately 20 years of
experience in the printing industry.

Mr. Leung Wai Ming (R 87), aged 43, is a non-executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2008. Mr. WM Leung has approximately 10
years of experience in the marketing field.

Mr. Deng Xiaen (882 2), aged 38, is a non-executive Director. He
joined the Group in 2014. He holds a postgraduate degree of master
in law awarded by Fudan University. He served in the legal affair
department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Shantou
branch from 1999 to 2002. He was the practicing lawyer in the legal
aid centre of Jinyuan District Shantou City from 2002 to 2003. He was
the practicing lawyer and deputy chief of Guangdong Zhongda Lawyer
Office from 2003 to 2010. He is currently the vice president of Hong
Kong Tung Fung Investment Company Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah (BE= %), aged 64, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company appointed on 13 November 2013.

Dr. Lung is a university lecturer. He has been teaching a wide range
of professional subjects in both local and overseas universities and
institutions since 1992. Dr. Lung has extensive experience in corporate
governance, company secretarial practices, accounting and finance.
He served in VST Holdings Limited (stock code: 856) as the company
secretary from November 2002 to October 2009 and the financial
controller from November 2002 to October 2008. Dr. Lung worked as
the finance manager of Bel Trade International Company Limited from
March 2000 to October 2002 and the accounts manager of Swedish
Trading International Holdings Limited from April 1995 to June 1999.

Dr. Lung was admitted as a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries ("HKICS”) in April 2006 and as a fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in April 2006. He has also been admitted as an associate member of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in February 1996 and registered
as a certified tax adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong from
June 2010 to December 2015.

Dr. Lung obtained his doctor of philosophy in business administration
from the Tarlac State University in November 2012 through distance
learning and master of business administration from the University
of East Asia (currently known as University of Macau) in February
1988 and diploma in management studies from the Hong Kong
Management Association and the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1985.

In 2014, Dr. Lung was invited as a guest speaker in two separate
seminars to address the topic “How to run an annual general meeting
and manage difficult meetings properly” in the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and HKICS respectively. During the
year, Dr. Lung represented HKICS to attend and participate in the
consultation meeting organized by the “Standard Working Hours
Committee” as initiated by the Hong Kong government. He was
also invited to represent HKICS to act in the panel of adjudicators
for the Best Annual Report Awards as organised by the Hong Kong
Management Association from 2009 to 2013. Dr. Lung served in the
Membership Committee of the HKICS during 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Chan Chi Yu (FR&#8), aged 60, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company appointed on 13 November 2013.

Mr. Chan is currently a non-executive director of Vanke Property
(Overseas) Limited (formerly known as Winsor Properties Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1036)) and a director of Vanke Real Estate
(Hong Kong) Company Limited. Mr. Chan has been appointed as a
consultant of China Vanke Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange with stock code: 000002) since April 2008.

Mr. Chan has been as a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors since May 2012, an affiliated member of The Association of
International Accountants since July 1993, and an associate member
and a full member of the Hong Kong Management Association since
October 1981 and April 2012, respectively.

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen (13X 2%), aged 50, is an independent
non-executive Director of Company appointed on 13 November 2013.

Mr. Chi has served as the managing director, ITD China of Federal
Express (Hong Kong) Limited (the holding company of which is listed
in the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: FDX)) from June 2009.

Mr. Chi obtained his Master of Commerce in information systems
from the University of New South Wales in Australia in October 1994,
Master of Science from the University of Salford in United Kingdom
in July 1987 and Bachelor of Science from the University of London in
United Kingdom in August 1985.

Ms. Luk Mei Yan (F£3< &), aged 50, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company appointed on 13 November 2013.

Ms. Luk has served as the group financial controller of Golden Sun
Home Products Limited since July 2008.

Ms. Luk was certified as an associate of Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) in July 1998 and admitted as a certified
practicing accountant of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants in March 1998.

Ms. Luk obtained her bachelor of commerce (accounting) from Curtin

University of Technology in August 1996 and associate diploma in
accounting from Adelaide College of TAFE in Australia in May 1993.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Senior Management

Mr. Tsui Pak Wai (#R4H4&), aged 47, is the chief administrative
officer. He joined the Group in 2006. Mr. Tsui is primarily responsible
for formulating new business policy and workflow, monitoring the
daily operation of the human resources department and administrative
department and participating in brand building activities of the
Group. Mr. Tsui has over 10 years of experience in the corporate
administration and management.

He has been a member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute since January 2015.

Mr. Tsui was awarded the graduate executive diploma in PRC
corporate governance from the University of Hong Kong School of
Professional and Continuing Education in November 2014 and the
master of business administration from the University of Management
& Technology in September 2013 through distance learning and
bachelor of arts from Fu Jen Catholic University in June 1997.

Mr. Chan Wai Keung (BR{£38), aged 47, is the sales and marketing
manager of the Group. Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 2011.
Mr. Chan has approximately 12 years of experience in the printing
industry. Mr. Chan served as a sales manager in Wilson Printing
Equipment Limited from August 2001 to July 2009.

Mr. Cheang Ngai Wang (E83 %), aged 52, is the information
technology director of the Group. Mr. Cheang joined the Group in
December 2004. Mr. Cheang has approximately 9 years of experience
in the printing industry.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of printing services and solutions
on advertisement, bound books and stationeries, to a diversified
customer base in Hong Kong.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 58 to 59.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3.53
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2015 to be
payable to the shareholders on Friday, 21 August 2015 to those
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
Wednesday, 12 August 2015.

Annual General Meeting

The 2015 annual general meeting of the Company (“2015 AGM") will
be held on Monday, 3 August 2015.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at the 2015 AGM, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Friday, 31 July 2015 to Monday,
3 August 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. All transfer of shares accompanied by
the relevant certificates must be lodged with the Company’s transfer
office and share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 30 July 2015.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 11 August 2015 to Wednesday, 12 August 2015,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 10 August 2015.
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital for the year
ended 31 March 2015 are set out in Note 22 to the financial
statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 March
2015.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (“Companies Law") of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$88,593,000, of which HK$17,650,000 dividend
has been proposed for the year. Under the Companies Law, the share
premium account of the Company of approximately HK$80,357,000
as of 31 March 2015 is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend, if any, is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 160.
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Report of the Directors
EEeWE

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. She Siu Kee William
Mr. Fung Hong Keung
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai (resigned on 28 May 2015)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shing Kai
Mr. Leung Wai Ming
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki
Mr. Deng Xiaen

Mr. Leung Yat Pang

(appointed on 1T December 2014)
(resigned on 28 May 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah

Mr. Chan Chi Yu

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen
Ms. Luk Mei Yan

In accordance with Article 112, Mr. Deng Xiaen, who was appointed
as Director of the Company after the 2014 annual general meeting,
is subject to re-election at the 2015 AGM and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 108(a), Messrs. She Siu Kee William, Fung
Hong Keung, Leung Wai Ming and Chan Chi Yu shall retire by rotation
at the 2015 AGM, Messrs She Siu Kee William, Fung Hong Keung and
Leung Wai Ming, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr.
Chan Chi Yu confirmed that he will not offer himself for re-election at
the 2015 AGM due to the increased commitment on his own business.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO™)) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are set out below:

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated

corporation

(i) The Company

Long position/
short position

Name of Director Nature of interest

BEEgR

Mr. She Siu Kee William
SRR A

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki
HEBEE

Mr. Lam Shing Kai
MEERE

Mr. Leung Wai Ming
RER S

REME

Beneficial owner

BEomiEA A

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note)

S EE R (M)

Beneficial owner

BEomiEA A

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note)

S EE R (M)

Beneficial owner

BEomiEA A

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note)

EHEE R (M)

Beneficial owner

BEomiEA A

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note)

S EE R ()

BR/ KR

Long position
"E
Long position
wE

Long position
"E
Long position
Sy}

Long position
"E
Long position
Sy}

Long position
"E
Long position
Sy}

EEREREBAENROER

R-ZF-—AF=ZA=1+—H ARAEEK
EBITHABRARRR RAEMEEEE (E&E
RESERE G ([ESFRBE G ])EXV
BRI B - ABREMR D KBS HA BRIERE
REAEEBIEXVEBET R8N B mMA R A &
BRArHERSORR (BRREREZ MR K
5148 R 156 3 T 1R AR (F 3K E 1E R B RS 5K
B SREBEFRHMERGIFE352RAE T
FERZ IR B B M - SRR i AR B B 8%
TAFIHCEMBITAZESTETRESR R HHIER
st R (MRS B ) BB A AR B B X
MR SR BN T

AARRAEE[MABEZERSD - HER

BRESHEZRAR
(i) A2F
Number of Approximate
ordinary shares/ percentage of
underlying shareholding in
shares held the Company
REEER - READQFIFRE
HERG A KBS
4,462,500 0.89%
292,500,000 58.50%
4,462,500 0.89%
292,500,000 58.50%
4,462,500 0.89%
292,500,000 58.50%
4,462,500 0.89%
292,500,000 58.50%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares (Continued)

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (Continued)

EEREREBEAEBNROESR

(%)

AATREFEMEHE EZER M - HER
LEREFHNERRAR#)

(i) The Company (Continued) (i) AEATFE)
Note: MizT -
The Company was held approximately 58.5%), 0.89%, 0.89%, 0.89%, 0.89% and RRQ RS BB eprint Limited ~ RABEFE([RFE
0.56% respectively by eprint Limited, Mr. She Siu Kee William (“Mr. She”), Mr. £ HEBAEA(THEE]D « REREEE(HK
Chong Cheuk Ki (“Mr. Chong”), Mr. Lam Shing Kai (“Mr. Lam”), Mr. Leung Wai FE]) RERSE(TREREE]) KRR WAL
Ming (“Mr. WM Leung”) and Mr. Leung Yat Pang (“Mr. YP Leung”). (F2—Msx4E])#HE4585% * 0.89% ~ 0.89% -
0.89% * 0.89% }0.56% ©
eprint Limited is held as to 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62% and 13.52% by eprint Limited B RIERE AL - FEEAE - Mok~ R
Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr. YP Leung respectively. BARERR-BLERB21.62% * 21.62% -
Pursuant to a deed of confirmation dated 2 July 2013 and entered into by them 21.62% 21.6_2%&13.52% o $E<H§EEI1BZT%§ALZ
confirming the existence of their acting in concert arrangement, each of Mr. She, H /Hﬁ%‘_:v:§_:¢ﬁﬂ :EZEEE%?Q#%EE;{{EEZ
Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr. YP Leung has agreed to jointly —BOBRY - REL Htii ° ﬁf‘ﬁt—t;é@ﬁﬂﬁ
control their respective interests in the Company. Accordingly, eprint Limited fi&ﬂ_&%fiaﬁﬁ @/E‘/_t\@&%'lﬁ%%gﬁ’\‘\
shall be accustomed to act in accordance with joint instructions of the Concerted %@ETEME@ ° @lfﬁ ' eprint Elmlted’fﬁ i*ﬁfi*ﬁ
Shareholders. Hence, each of the Concerted Shareholders is deemed to be fT@ﬂ%i/ﬁ\H?ETTT$ o *_Ef)iaﬁﬁ&,ﬁﬁiaﬂ%ﬁﬂ E=S
interested in all the Shares held by eprint Limited by virtue of the SFO. —BTERRAAR Bieprint Limited T H BT H B
PR -
(ii) Associated corporation — eprint Limited (ii) 1H¥EE —eprint Limited
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares held shareholding in
in the Associated the Associated
Name of Director Nature of interest Corporation Corporation
BEHEBEE RAEE B ER
EEnA BENE HBERHE BHABED T
Mr. She Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
RFEE ERBEAA
Mr. Chong Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
AL EREAA
Mr. Lam Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
Vit ESBEAA
Mr. WM Leung Beneficial owner 2,162 21.62%
RERSLE EREAA
Note: The disclosed interest represents the interests in eprint Limited, the MizE : BERBESEREE  HEE  WEE - 2R
controlling shareholder of the Company, which is owned by Mr. She, REAEERR—IBEERARRIZERR R
Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr. YP Leung in the respective eprint Limited 2 ## » & BAT{EELBID BIA
proportions of 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62%, 21.62% and 13.52%. 21.62% ~ 21.62% ~ 21.62% ~ 21.62% K&
13.52% °
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares (Continued)

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 March 2015 as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests in Share Options
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the
Company passed on 13 November 2013, the rules of the Pre-IPO
share option scheme ("“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved
and adopted. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
to recognise the contribution of certain Directors and employees
of the Group to the growth of the Company and/or to the listing
of the Shares on the Stock Exchange by granting options to them
as incentive or reward. Details of the terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 20
November 2013 (the “Prospectus”).

An aggregate of 12,500,000 share options at an exercise price of
HK$0.78 each, being the offer price under the Share Offer (as defined
in the Prospectus), were granted on 13 November 2013 to certain
employees (including Directors) of the Group. These 12,500,000 share
options were subsequently cancelled on 9 May 2014 pursuant to a
resolution passed by the Board.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Interests in Share Options (continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme are as follows:

Granted on
13 November
2013
R=-ZB—=%

Name or category
of participants

t-A+=H
Bl

SHEEMERER

BREER e

BRARREABRESNS 2

R B R AR R E R BRES &R DB

BT

Outstanding
as at
31 March

Cancelled
during
the year

FAEH

Director2=

Mr. Fung Hong Keung 2,500,000 (2,500,000) -

S BRGR o

Employees{E & 10,000,000 (10,000,000) -

Total#& &t 12,500,000 (12,500,000) -
Notes: Bt 5
(1) The share options are exercisable in the following manner: (1)

(a) on 1 April 2014, 50% of the share options granted shall become

exercisable;

(b) on the second anniversary date of the Listing (the “Listing Date”), being
3 December 2015, 50% of the share options granted shall become

exercisable; and

() all the options granted that are not exercisable prior to the sixth anniversary
date of the Listing Date, being 3 December 2019, shall lapse and be deemed

as cancelled and void.

(2) These 12,500,000 share options were cancelled on 9 May 2014 pursuant to a (2)

resolution passed by the Board.
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Exercise

price  Exercisable Period
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0.78 1 April 2014 to
2 December 2019
—“E-HFNA—HZE
—E-hEFE+ZAZH
0.78 1 April 2014 to 2
December 2019
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 13 November 2013 pursuant to the written resolutions of the
shareholders passed on 13 November 2013. The Scheme is a share
incentive scheme and was established to recognise and acknowledge
the contributions of the Eligible Participants (as defined in the
Prospectus) have had or may have made to the Group. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe new Shares in aggregate not exceeding 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time.

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1

The limit on the total number of shares of the Company
("Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other scheme(s) of any member of the Group must
not exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Listing Date (which shall be
50,000,000 Shares) unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company has been obtained, and which must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. As at the
date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 50,000,000 Shares, which represents 10%
of the issued Shares as at the date of this report.

The total number of Shares issued and which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) granted to any Eligible Participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued
Shares as at the date of grant.

The subscription price for the Shares under the options to be
granted under the Scheme will be a price determined by the
Board at the time of grant of the options, and will be not less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board
to each Participant who accepts the grant of any options, which
must not be more than 10 years from the date of the grant
(subject to acceptance) of the option.
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Report of the Directors
EEenE

Share Optlon Scheme (Continued)
(5) HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant who accepts the grant
of an option in accordance with the terms of the Scheme on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

(6) The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the Listing Date, i.e. 3 December 2013.

Other details of the Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.

No share option under the Scheme has been granted by the Company
since its adoption and up to the date of this report.

Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares

As at 31 March 2015, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors and the chief executives
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company

BBIRRELTE )

(5) WBEZTENER  BEWERBEREZ2
B 2 A A AN AR B BB IR RS S 450100
B IT ©

(6) n/<u+2U J:I'hElHﬂ(Eﬂ_i—:i‘l'_

A=B)RBi+FARAERRZERK -
ZarE| M EMF BT R BRERS ©
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Number of Approximate

ordinary shares/ percentage of

Long position/ underlying shareholding in

Nature of interest short position shares held the Company

! BEEER, G ONGEES

ERME BHRRR HERGHE BMOB D

eprint Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner Long position 292,500,000 58.50%
eprint Limited (Bf3£1) EnEEA e

Ms. Lo Suet Yee (Note 2) Interest of spouse Long position 296,962,500 59.39%
EERL L (F2) [RLEL 3 e

Ms. Y|p Fei (Note 3) Interest of spouse Long position 296,962,500 59.39%
BRLZ L (FIEE3) [ EL s "R

s Yu Siu Pin Note 4) Interest of spouse Long position 296,962,500 59.39%
A £ (MR [ EL "R

Ms. Chau Fun}g Kiu (Note 5) Interest of spouse Long position 296,962,500 59.39%
BB 2+ (MiEE5) fofE s e

Mr. Huang Xiaopeng Interest of controlled Long position 61,875,000 12.38%

#(Note 6) . _cor Qration\/

Bl 5 & (f97E6) XiEnEEE R 5=y

Mr. Huang Xiaojia (Note 6) Interest of controlled Long position 61,875,000 12.38%

N . __corporation
B ER A (7E6) XiEnEE R Sy
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Report of the Directors
FRGHE

Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’ FEREREM AT ZRGER
Interests in Shares (continued) ()

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying ZAATROREBERONERIXE 2
shares of the Company (Continued)

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares/ percentage of
Long position/ underlying shareholding in
Nature of interest short position shares held the Company
‘ BELER, SN
ERME BR/HE HEROHE BOBDH
Mr. Huang Bingwen (Note 6) Interest of controlled Long position 61,875,000 12.38%
. A __Corporation
EIRX S & (FI3E6) RPEhEE R TR
Hong Kong Tung Fung Interest of controlled Long position 61,875,000 12.38%
Investment Company corporation
Limited (Note 6) - . .
HERAKEARAA G EEER HR
(KftsEe6)
Hong Kong Luck Investment Beneficial owner Long position 61,875,000 12.38%
Company Limited (Note 6)
HemnREARAA BEmlEAA i
(HiE6)
Mr. Leung Yat Pang Beneficial owner Long position 2,775,000 0.56%
R—ErE EREEA e
Interest of controlled Long position 292,500,000 58.50%

__corporation (Note 7)
G EEER(HE7) g8

Notes: %L

1. eprint Limited is directly interested in 58.5% in the Company. 1. eprint Limited E B4 A N2 7]58.5 % #E a ©

2. Ms. Lo Suet Yee is the spouse of Mr. She. Under the SFO, Ms. Lo Suet Yee is taken 2. EERXETARELNER - BEFSRAE K
to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. She is interested. 7 BEERLTWRBNREEMBERERZER

BERMDHERES °

3. Ms. Yip Fei is the spouse of Mr. Chong. Under the SFO, Ms. Yip Fei is taken to be 3. ERL LT B EENRME © RIFESFRAEED

interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Chong is interested. R AR R ST AT U E HEa 2 AR R 0 E AR
HREAER o

4. Ms. Yu Siu Ping is the spouse of Mr. Lam. Under the SFO, Ms. Yu Siu Ping is taken 4. AR ER/RAENERS - RIFEESKHAE F

to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Lam is interested. Bl - B ADSE L LR AR TR Ak 2 A8 R
BERDPERESR -

5. Ms. Chau Fung Kiu is the spouse of Mr. WM Leung. Under the SFO, Ms. Chau Fung 5. EARBZ L AREALENELE - RIEESRAE
Kiu is taken to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. WM Leung 5B > BRI AR BN RE RS LS RS
is interested. ZAEREE KD P EG R -

6. These 61,875,000 shares are held by Hong Kong Luck Investment Company 6. #%%61,875,000 10 A B BRI I A G R A A5
Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shantou Dongfeng, an A share B ZARALBERE(—HMREEEZRZME
company listed on the main board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Shantou RETZARRNR) 22 EMBAR - IBREHRE
Dongfeng is 54.40% held by Hong Kong Tung Fung Investment Company Limited BREKZEERAAIRE54.40% » fEDREKL
which is owned as to 34% by Mr. Huang Xiaopeng, 33% by Mr. Huang Xiaojia and AARABAREELL BEELENERXE
33% by Mr. Huang Bingwen. Under the SFO, each of Shantou Dongfeng, Hong D RIBEA34%  33% }33% ° IREFHF K E &
Kong Tung Fung Investment Company Limited, Mr. Huang Xiaopeng, Mr. Huang Bl OlSERRE - BEREREER AR - =REEL
Xiaojia and Mr. Huang Bingwen is taken to be interested in the same number of CEEELAREREESARASNEEE
Shares in which Hong Kong Luck Investment Company Limited is interested. XEE{QQEBEQEFE%EEEZW A2 B AR 1

<5

7. These 292,500,000 shares are held through eprint Limited, a company is 7. % 292,500,000 A% & {1 T 35
beneficially owned as to 13.52% by Mr. Leung Yat Pang. A - eprint Limited /& — A %
13.52%REEEH) A A ©
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares (continued)

Interests or short positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who have interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2015.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
dated 13 November 2013 with the Company for an initial fixed term
of three years commencing from 3 December 2013 (i.e. the Listing
Date). Each of the executive Directors may receive a discretionary
bonus, the amount of which will be determined by reference to the
comments of the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Deng Xiaen has signed a letter of appointment as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 19 November 2014 for a term of three
years commencing from 1 December 2014. Each of the other non-
executive Director and all independent non-executive Director has
signed a letter of appointment dated 13 November 2013 with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EEgHRE

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry on all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

Connected Transactions

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with parties
who, upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange,
became connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Details of such transactions are set out in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus.

Connected Persons

1. CTP Limited (“CTP")
CTP is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to 25% by Mr. She,
25% by Mr. Chong, 25% by Mr. Lam and 25% by Mr. WM
Leung, respectively.

2. Promise Properties Limited ({R#EYZ£EGR A7) (“Promise
Properties”)
Promise Properties is principally engaged in the business
of property investment, and is beneficially owned as to
approximately 21.62% by Mr. She, 21.62% by Mr. Chong,
21.62% by Mr. Lam, 13.52% by Mr. YP Leung, 10.81% by Ms.
Chau Fung Kiu, the wife of Mr. WM Leung and 10.81% by an
independent third party.

3. VVV Limited ("VVV")
VVV is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to approximately
21.62% by Mr. She, 21.62% by Mr. Chong, 21.62% by Mr.
Lam, 21.62% by Mr. WM Leung and 13.52% by Mr. YP Leung,
respectively.

4. Profit More Rich Limited (2 E Z &R 2 7) (“Profit More”)
Profit More is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to approximately 100%
by CTP.

5. King Profit International Limited (ZF| B AR 2 7) (“King
Profit”)
King Profit is principally engaged in the business of property
investment, and is beneficially owned as to approximately 70%
by VVV and 30% by Mr. Yip Chi Man.

ESETRSRENEETR
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1. CTP Limited ([CTP))
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3. VVV Limited ([VVV])
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

Connected Transactions (continued)

Connected Persons (Continued)

Wilson Printing Equipment Limited (B{SENRIREE R A7)
(“Wilson Printing”)

Wilson Printing is principally engaged in the business of trading
of printing equipment and printing materials, and is beneficially
owned as to 100% by Mr. Lam Shing Tai, the brother of Mr.
Lam, one of the Controlling Shareholders and non-executive
Directors.

Wilson (Hong Kong) Limited (B2 (&%8)BR2F) (“Wilson
HK")

Wilson HK is principally engaged in the business of trading of
printing machineries and spare parts, and is beneficially owned
as to 65% by Mr. Lam Shing Tai, the brother of Mr. Lam, one of
the Controlling Shareholders and non-executive Directors.

Mr. She, Mr. Chong, Mr. Lam and Mr. WM Leung are the Directors
and Mr. YP Leung is a former Director of the Company within
12 months of the date of this report and they are Controlling
Shareholders. The above companies are associates of Mr. She, Mr.
Chong, Mr. Lam, Mr. WM Leung and Mr. YP Leung, and hence they
are considered as connected persons of the Group under Rule 14A.11
of the Listing Rules.

8.

Shantou Dongfeng Printing Co., Ltd. (ll/Z& 5 B EN 7l B% 12 5 BR
‘A7) (“Shantou Dongfeng”)

Shantou Dongfeng, a limited liability company incorporated
under the laws of the PRC with its shares listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 601515). Its business is in the
printing of paper packaging for tobacco, wine, and cosmetics.

Shantou Dongfeng is interested in approximately 12.38% of the
issued shares of the Company and is therefore regarded as a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Connected Persons (Continued)

The Company and Shantou Dongfeng entered into the framework
agreement for the formation of the project company for the internet
design and printing business in the PRC excluding the existing
business of the Group and Shantou Dongfeng. The Company and
Shantou Dongfeng will invest a total of RMB25 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$31.25 million) in the project company and
their equity interests in the project company will be 30% and 70%
respectively. The Company and Shantou Dongfeng agreed to pay
RMB7.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$9.375 million) and
RMB17.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$21.875 million)
respectively for the business of the project company.

Continuing connected transactions

The following connected transactions constitute non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

1. Tenancy agreements
Background
(a) Tenancy agreements relating to CTP

Sixteen tenancy agreements signed in July 2013 were
entered into between CTP, as landlord, and Lucky Gainer
and Invoice Limited, as tenants, under which CTP agreed
to lease a number of properties located in Kwun Tong
Industrial Centre to Lucky Gainer and Invoice Limited,
with a total saleable area of approximately 23,000 square
feet, for a term of 33 months ending on 31 March 2016
for use as offices, workshops, stores and car parks. The
monthly rental payable to CTP for the period from April
2013 to June 2013 is approximately HK$371,000 and for
the period from July 2013 to 31 March 2014 under the
above mentioned tenancy agreements is approximately
HK$371,000. The monthly rentals payable to CTP for the
year ending 31 March 2015 and 2016 are approximately
HK$390,000 and HK$410,000 respectively. The aggregate
rentals paid to CTP for the year ended 31 March 2015 is
approximately HK$4,482,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

1.

50

Tenancy agreements (Continued)
Background (Continued)

(b)

Tenancy agreements relating to Promise Properties

Five tenancy agreements signed in July 2013 were
entered into between Promise Properties, as landlord,
and Lucky Gainer and Invoice Limited, as tenants, under
which Promise Properties agreed to lease a number of
properties located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to Lucky
Gainer and Invoice Limited with a total saleable area of
approximately 8,300 square feet, for a term of 33 months
ending on 31 March 2016 for use as workshops. The
aggregate rentals paid to Promise Properties for the year
ended 31 March 2015 is approximately HK$1,428,000.

Tenancy agreements relating to VVV

Six tenancy agreements signed in July 2013 were entered
into between VVV, as landlord, and Lucky Gainer, as
tenant, under which VVV agreed to lease a number of
properties located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to
Lucky Gainer for use as workshops and a car park and
one property in Chai Wan to Promise Network for use as a
store, with a total saleable area of approximately 12,000
square feet, for a term of 33 months ending on 31 March
2016. The aggregate rentals paid to VVV for the year
ended 31 March 2015 is approximately HK$2,098,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

1.

Tenancy agreements (Continued)
Background (Continued)

(d)

Tenancy agreement relating to Profit More

A tenancy agreement signed in July 2013 was entered into
between Profit More, as landlord, and Lucky Gainer, as
tenant, under which Profit More agreed to lease a property
located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to Lucky Gainer
with a total saleable area of approximately 2,900 square
feet, for a term of 33 months ending on 31 March 2016
for use as a workshop. The aggregate rentals paid to Profit
More for the year ended 31 March 2015 is approximately
HK$517,200.

Tenancy agreement relating to King Profit

A tenancy agreement signed in July 2013 was entered into
between King Profit, as landlord, and Invoice Limited, as
tenant, under which King Profit agreed to lease a property
and a car park located in Kwun Tong Industrial Centre to
Invoice Limited with a total saleable area of approximately
1,800 square feet, for a term of 33 months ending on
31 March 2016 for use as a workshop and car park. The
aggregate rentals paid to King Profit for the year ended 31
March 2015 is approximately HK$325,800.

(collectively, the “Tenancy Agreements”).

The annual caps for the leases under the Tenancy
Agreements for the year ended 31 March 2015 is
approximately HK$9,153,000. The actual rental paid under
the Tenancy Agreements for the year ended 31 March
2015 is approximately HK$8,851,000.
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nected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

2.

The i

Master Supply Agreement

Background

On or about 27 September 2013, Wilson Printing and Wilson
HK, all of which are controlled by Mr. Lam Shing Tai, the
brother of Mr. Lam, and the Company entered into a master
supply agreement (the “Master Supply Agreement”) for a term
of three years ending on 31 March 2016, pursuant to which
Wilson Printing and Wilson HK agreed to supply raw materials
which mainly include ink products, zinc printing plates, printing
solutions, consumables of printing machines and spare parts
and provide maintenance services in respect of the printing
machines to the Group. The purchase price payable by the Group
to Wilson Printing and Wilson HK will be agreed following arm’s
length negotiations between the relevant parties with reference
to the prevailing market price of the similar products and
services in Hong Kong.

The annual cap amounts of the fees to be paid by the Group
for the provision of ink products, zinc printing plates, printing
solutions, consumables of printing machines, spare parts and
maintenance services under the Master Supply Agreement for
the year ended 31 March 2015 is approximately HK$27,500,000.
The actual fees paid/payable by the Group under the Master
Supply Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2015 is
HK$26,202,655.

ndependent non-executive Directors of the Company have

reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into:

52

in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

on normal commercial terms or on terms that are fair and
reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are
concerned; and

have been carried out in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing such transactions.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Other than the aforementioned continuing connected transactions,
the related party transactions disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements are either exempted connected continuing
transactions or non-exempt continuing connected transactions which
are in compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Non-Compete Undertakings

eprint Limited, Mr. She Siu Kee William, Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki, Mr. Lam
Shing Kai, Mr. Leung Wai Ming and Mr. Leung Yat Pang (together, the
“Covenantors”) entered into the deed of non-competition in favour
of the Company on 13 November 2013 (the “NCU"), pursuant to
which the Covenantors have undertaken to the Company (for itself
and for the benefit of each of the members of the Group) that, with
effect from the date of listing (i.e. 3 December 2013) and for as long
as the shares of the Company remain so listed on the Stock Exchange
and the Controlling Shareholders are individually or collectively with
any of his/its associates interested directly or indirectly in not less
than 30% of the issued ordinary share capital of our Company (the
“Restricted Period”), the Covenantors or their respective associates
shall not, (i) directly or indirectly engage in, participate or hold any
right or interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved
in any business (whether as owner, director, operator, licensor,
licensee, partner, shareholder, joint venturer, employee, consultant or
otherwise) in competition with or likely to be in competition with the
existing business carried on by the Group (the “Restricted Business”);
and (ii) directly or indirectly take any action which constitutes an
interference with or a disruption of the Restricted Business including,
but not limited to, solicitation of our Group’s customers, suppliers or
personnel of any member of the Group.
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Non-Compete Undertakings (continued)

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance with
the non-compete undertaking during the year ended 31 March 2015.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the NCU and
confirmed the compliance with the non-compete undertaking by the
Covenantors during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the percentage of sales attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers of the Group is 0.7% and
2.3% respectively.

During the year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 39.5% and 79.2% of the total
purchases of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.

Subsidiaries and joint ventures

Details of the principal subsidiaries and joint ventures of the Company
and set out in Note 10 and Note 11 to the financial statements.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules
during the year and up to the date of this report.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 13 November
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely, Ms.
Luk Mei Yan (chairlady), Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah and Mr. Chi Man Shing
Stephen. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Competition and Conflict of Interests

During the year, saved as disclosed in the Prospectus and this annual
report, none of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates has engaged in any
business that competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 18 to 30 of the 2015 Annual Report.

Auditor

The term of appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"”) as
auditor of the Company shall retire at the conclusion of the 2015
AGM, a resolution will be submitted to the 2015 AGM to re-appoint
PwC as auditor of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT S
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EPRINT GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of eprint
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 159, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BOtEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-ZT—RF=A=1+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&ET TET
Revenue W25 6 316,547 304,562
Cost of sales $H € Ak AN 7 (196,331) (190,012)
Gross profit EH 120,216 114,550
Other income Hang A 6 7,736 6,165
Other losses — net HabEsie — FEE 6 (860) (1,122)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HERAY 7 (19,819) (17,553)
Administrative expenses TEREX 7 (70,581) (75,136)
Operating profit &8 i 36,692 26,904
Finance income B E WA 2,449 1,147
Finance costs & A A (790) (1,894)
Finance income/(costs) — net BEWA S (KAN) — %58 9 1,659 (747)
Share of profits of joint ventures — net JEliE & SR — F5E 11 109 1,776
Profit before income tax R B 18 %% Az 7 38,460 27,933
Income tax expense FiisfiMA > 12 (6,151) (6,535)
Profit for the year FREF 32,309 21,398
Other comprehensive income: Hittir e W ¢
Item that may be subsequently HIZRRE B S E Bk
reclassified to profit or loss: BYIEE :
Currency translation differences fE X Z=%8 (596) (182)
Total comprehensive income FREEWEEEE
for the year 31,713 21,216

=,
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BftEE I ER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE_Z-—RF=A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—lF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
LiEss TER FHET
Profit for the year attributable to: UTEEEEEREF :
Equity holders of the Company RArlE=FAA 32,335 21,577
Non-controlling interests SRR HE (26) (179)
32,309 21,398
Earnings per share for profit FARQRERIEE AEMN
attributable to equity holders of BN EREF
the Company during the year
Basic (expressed in HK cents per share) HEARRERBNWE) 13 6.47 5.19
Diluted (expressed in HK cents per share)  #5& (X FREET) 13 6.46 5.19
Total comprehensive income for the LI F&EBEEMAERGZS RS
year attributable to: HEg
Equity holders of the Company AARIERFEA 31,739 21,395
Non-controlling interests SRR 2 (26) (179)
31,713 21,216
Dividends =N 29 32,300 34,999

The notes on pages 68 to 159 form an integral part of these #H M E68E 1598 KN T AR S 0K HRE

consolidated financial statements. K —Eh5H o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BT BRI R

As at 31 March 2015
RZT—RF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—FEF —E—pgF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R N RE 14 97,600 103,414
Investments in joint ventures SEBDENKE 11 6,401 2,922
Deposits and prepayments e RIBINIRIA 18 1,865 3,164
105,866 109,500
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 3,229 3,123
Trade receivables B 5 e IE 17 2,316 2,379
Deposits, prepayments and other e BENREREM
receivables FEUR TR IB 18 4,658 2,466
Current income tax recoverable = B R] ;R Bl P15 F7 1,279 1,158
Amounts due from joint ventures JEUL & &> SEFIE 34 2,293 479
Bank deposit RITER 19 = 18,004
Cash and cash equivalents HeNIESEEER 20 118,208 115,961
131,983 143,570
Total assets EEHATE 237,849 253,070
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to RATERFE AEMN
the equity holders of the Company EXRRFEE
Share capital A% 2R 22 5,000 5,000
Share premium f&17 i B 22 80,357 80,357
Other reserves H bk 24 57,998 57,412
Proposed final dividend AR S 24 & 29 17,650 20,000
161,005 162,769
Non-controlling interests JEFERRRE S (6) 2,025
Total equity XA 160,999 164,794
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHIBIRR

As at 31 March 2015
RZZE-—RF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—lF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Obligations under finance leases MEHEEBETNEME 27 6,969 14,694
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFEFHAaE 28 12,172 10,496
19,141 25,190
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B D KIE 25 24,274 24,920
Accruals and other payables JE 5T KT8 f2 H A FE A RRI8 25 19,322 16,284
Amounts due to directors FENEERIE 34 350 350
Borrowings EBE 26 3,810 9,681
Obligations under finance leases MEHEEBETEME 27 9,953 11,620
Current income tax payable FESTE BT 1S5 - 231
57,709 63,086
Total liabilities =Rtk 76,850 88,276
Total equity and liabilities EakBEERE 237,849 253,070
Net current assets REEEFRE 74,274 80,484
Total assets less current liabilities BEASERRBAR 180,140 189,984

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 159 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2015 and were signed

on its behalf:

Mr. She Siu Kee William

Director

EF

The notes on pages 68 to 159 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FESBERI9EMHAHYBHREREN T —1
FRAThAEESEME YA TINEF

RERE -

Mr. Fung Hong Keung

BEEEE
Director

EF

HNEBE159AMMERBAA B IHRK

H— 55 o
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Statement of Financial Position

B ISR R

As at 31 March 2015
RZT—RF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A RIRIRE 10 73,897 73,897
Prepayments T 5RIE 18 120 126
74,017 74,023
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE Ko H A fE W R IE 18 227 87
Amount due from a subsidiary A NG E 34 19,522 19,519
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries A EE N EPNGIE S 34 72,519 73,331
Current income tax recoverable = HAR R O Fr 53R 458 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEMEIER 20 1,170 1,314
93,896 94,251
Total assets BEEMAR 167,913 168,274
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to RATERFE AEMN
the equity holders of the Company BEXRR G
Share capital A% 2R 22 5,000 5,000
Share premium f&17 i B 22 80,357 80,357
Other reserves HifEE 24 64,094 61,879
Proposed final dividend AR S 24 & 29 17,650 20,000
Total equity s 167,101 167,236

=,
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Statement of Financial Position

BRI R

As at 31 March 2015
RZZE-—RF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET

Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals ezt IE 25 462 470
Amounts due to directors FENEERIE 34 350 350
Current income tax payable FESTE BART 1S5 - 218
Total liabilities BEA%E 812 1,038
Total equity and liabilities EakBEERE 167,913 168,274
Net current assets REBEEFE 93,084 93,213
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABAERE 167,101 167,236

The financial statements on pages 58 to 159 were approved by the H58F 1598 FIH I ERECD R -_ZE—RHE N

Board of Directors on 19 June 2015 and were signed on its behalf: B+hBEEZEZedE THTHIEERSE
F=E
Mr. She Siu Kee William Mr. Fung Hong Keung
RIBEKE BEREE
Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 68 to 159 form an integral part of these #H M E68E 1598 KN T AR S 0K HRE
consolidated financial statements. B)—E8 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RSB XR

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HE-P-TF=A=t-ALFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRREREARS
Share-based Non-

Other compensation  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve  eamings  Subotal interests equity
Bt BAEE  RERE  AGR ROWRRE  AEGR  REEW N FEREE  BEAE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Thn Thn Tin Tkn Thn Thn Tin Thn Thn Tin

Share Share Capital

pital ~ premium reserve

_ _Bflgn_te_ at 1 6p_ri|_2_01_4_ o ]}S‘_Z_S-_? H_ - H_ﬁiﬁ ] 5,000 80,357 6,593 - 1,69 (145) 69,268 162,769 2005 164,794
Comprehensive income felg
Profit forthe year Ef| = 2 - - - - 035 035 (%) 038
Other comprehensive income ~ Efta4 3%
Curency ranslfion differences B 2% - - - - - (596) (596) - (596)
Jodapiesmivne RGNS T i S S IR
Totalcontributionsbyand ~ ERHEEERNADTREA

distributionstoownersof the i8R A4

Company recognised directly

in equity
Shareased payments EhERR D)

(Note 23) - - - - 1168 - 1168 - 1,168
Reallocation of share hased ERiERS Rk

payment eserve o etaned  EHARERERT

earnings upon cancellafion - - - - (2.864) - 2,864 - - -
Acquistion of additonel terest in -~ 4E-FEB AR BoEd

asubsiday (33

(Note 3] - - - ) - - @ ) ey
Disposd of interestina sy~ HEMBATERT R AR

withoutlogsof contrl (H&E33)

(Note 33(0)) = = - - - - - - 5 5
Dividends (Note 29) B (its) - - - - 5 = Bas)  (4650) - 46N
Totaltransactions with owners,  ERNERERNERE AR5

recognised dirctly in equity = = - Q) (16%) - (e (53 oy (35508
Balanceat 1 March 2015 H-§-REZA=t-REH 5,000 80357 6533 ) - (4) 68T 161005 6 16099
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
OV e TE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE_Z-—RF=A=+—HIFE

Attrbutable o equi
Non-
Share (apita Exchange Retained controling
premium Teserve Teserve annings Interests
PLeE e RAE :
HK§'000 ’ HKS'000.
Tin # AT . Tin
Balance at 1 April 2013 H-E-ZERR-REs f - 6993 - - Bl 62,690 69,721 2004 71,95
Comprehensive income felg
Proftfor the year g - - - - - - 577 1577 (179) 21,38
Other comprehensiveincome ~~ EfteAk
Currency ranslaton differences %% > = = = - (182 - (182 - (182
Total comprehensive income AN AE - - - - - (18) n5m 213% (179 21,216

Total contributionsbyand ~ EEREREINADTEEAR
distrioutions to ownersofthe G- &R A4
Company recognised directly

in equity
e of shars Note 22 EbulliEa) 1,250 %50 - - - - SR K S )
Shares captalisation e bl ey illina)

(Note 22) 3749 (3749 = - - - - - - -
Professional expensesincuredin AT HEEHEERR

comnection with the Company's ~ (KF22)

Listing (Note 22) - (12,140 - - - - - (12,144) - (12.144)
Share-based payments ERERZ ()

(Note 23 = - - - 1,6% - - 1,6% - 1,69
Deemed contribution fromequity ~ E/EERRBANERKTE

holders pon Reorganisaion~~ (HE24)

(Note 24) - = (400) - - - - (H0) y (H0)
Diidends ot 29 Ré (W) - - - - - - (99 (49 - (s
Totaltransactions with owners,  E¥NEREINEREAARS

recognised directly in equity 499 80357 (400) - 1,6% - (14.999) 71,653 - 71,653
Balance at 31 March 2014 N-B-ME-f=1-RER 5,000 80,357 6,593 - 1,6% (145) 69,268 162,769 2005 164,794

The notes on pages 68 to 159 form an integral part of these #HAFE68E159E WKL A A HTEIEHRE
consolidated financial statements. B)—E8 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EOREERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-ZT—RF=A=1+—HILFE

Cash flows from operating activities

RETHELRTRE

2015
—E—RF

HK$°000
FERT

2014

—E -
HK$'000
FHT

Cash generated from operations KEFEIRG 30 50,842 60,556
Interest paid BAFLE (790) (1,894)
Income tax paid BB (4,827) (8,783)
Net cash generated from operating KRB E A RIR &R

activities 45,225 49,879
Cash flows from investing activities REETHELHRSRE
Consideration paid for investment in a REERENEN

joint venture wKERE 11 (4,000) =
Purchase of property, plant and BEME - BEM&E

equipment (7,354) (6,452)
Prepayment for purchase of property, BEWMZE  BEREEBEN

plant and equipment TERTRIE (502) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - HERRED

plant and equipment FR1S3RIE 30 334 2
Finance lease of machinery to a joint e EMHEEN

venture BEAE 34 (3,395) =
Receipts of finance lease payment froma  WHEIA LN EEHEE

joint venture (NES 3,395 -
Advances to joint ventures and related BRTEERER

companies EZRE NG - (183)
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposit RITIFEZORD (3 h0) 19 18,004 (18,004)
Interest received B HE 2,449 1,147
Net cash generated from/(used in) wEESEE,(FTH)

investing activities &5 8,931 (23,490)
Cash flows from financing activities REEHELRSRE
Acquisition of additional interest in a g i) = Y/NC TP

subsidiary HEHIMER 33(a) (2,031) -
Disposal of interest in a subsidiary eI B A TS 33(b) 5 =
Proceeds from borrowings BEEFRSRIE 3,810 9,681
Repayments of borrowings EEgEEy (9,681) (37,230)
Repayments of obligations under finance EZEREEHREBETH

leases KIA (9,392) (10,441)
Repayments of advances from EEREBK

shareholders = (400)
Proceeds from issue of shares BATIRD BV P15 RKI8 = 97,500
Professional expenses paid in connection — FLANA A _Em iS4 A9

with the Company’s Listing H¥ER - (25,530)
Dividends paid BERRE (34,650) (14,999)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEEN(FTA) ELE

financing activities L HEE 29 (51,939) 18,581
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEHBEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE_Z-—RF=A=+—HIFE

2015 2014

—E-hf —T—lF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T
Net increase in cash and cash ReERREEHEBHEM

equivalents B 2,217 44,970
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERREEEEHR

beginning of year 115,961 71,086

Effect of change in exchange rates EXSENTE 30 (95)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FHRESRRELEHEER

of year 20 118,208 115,961

Non-cash transaction

The Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of
machinery with a total capital amount at the inception of the lease of
HK$4,776,000 for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The notes on pages 68 to 159 form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

HRERS

BE_Z-—NEF=A=+—HILFE  &&
EpmEET Y MERELH - FIEHEA
R ) & AN 4858 54,776,000 7T °

HNEEBE159AMMERBAA B IHK

t— 5 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO BRI

1 General information, group reorganisation
and basis of presentation

1 ;ﬂ&ﬁﬂ@l - EEEARZIE

—REHR

1.1 General information 1.1

68

eprint Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 10 January 2014 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s address
of its registered office is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103
South Church Street, George Town, PO Box 10240, Grand
Cayman KY1-1002, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of printing services and solutions
on advertisement, bound books and stationeries, to a
diversified customer base in Hong Kong (“the Business”).

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 3 December 2013 (the “Listing”).

In preparation for the Listing, the Company and other
companies now comprising the Group have undergone a
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) pursuant to which
the Company has become the holding company of the
Group.

Prior to the Reorganisation, the Business was carried out
by the subsidiaries of the Company which were collectively
controlled by Mr. She Siu Kee William, Mr. Chong Cheuk
Ki, Mr. Lam Shing Kai, Mr. Leung Wai Ming, and Mr. Leung
Yat Pang (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousand of units of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHBEXHEE

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of REZESHMBERREMEANEE
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These SHBERHNRTX - BB EHBIN - 11
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, EHXRNFTBEINEEERER -
unless otherwise stated.
2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 REEE
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have REBWE I BEHRKRTIIBIEE S
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial etimoe([E8aetamag )
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong E 2 BB EREER( FEH
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The BmEER DRE - &0tk
consolidated financial statements have been prepared BEREFELKAERFR o
under the historical cost convention.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in & OFE IS 3R T AR B 38 R A AN B IR
accordance with the applicable requirements of the FZ 0L B HARE A & AEHI (5B 32
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this SR TEHEE -

financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements KRR BB ISR E E R R A G
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain R RAFERE TEANS M
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management s MEREERRNERAERS
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the ST BUCRERVEL HIET -

Group’s accounting policies.

I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHEREHFE»

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RBEE#)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 21 B BREH R EEE
(@) Amended standards and interpretation adopted (a) KREEFRNEJANSETE
by the Group AR 2
The following amendments to standards are THERIEERT AR =
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on E—pOEpg A — Bk
or after 1 April 2014: 1% 2 &t BRfE sR i A
2
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities
BB G ERIFE325% (1B5T) SRTH: 27— epEENS p A EEIE
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of assets: Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets
BB G ERIFE365 (1B5T) BERE: FemEENTIRESERE
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Recognition and

measurement — Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

BB G ERIFE395% (1B5T) SRTHE : BRARKFE-TETACEER
HHEEEZ LR
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) Investment entities
(Amendment)
BTG HRERERIFE105; - BAEPBRE REERE

REAB125R RBEGRTERE 275
—F——F)(EFD)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies
BA(BARMTGHREREZEE) -2BF21HR #HE

Other standards, amendments and RE-ZE—NF—AF—
interpretations which are effective for the HiBRR 2 RFEE
financial year beginning on 1 January 2014 are W2 R - (BET &
not material to the Group. 2R HAKEYES

B/ %8B
R & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to standards (b)
have been issued but not effective for the

financial year beginning on or after 1 April

2014 and have not been early adopted:

HKFRSs (Amendment)
B BHREER(EET)

HKFRSs (Amendment)
AR BHREER(EET)

HKAS 19 (2011) Amendment

BRI RS 19K (=T ——F) (7]

HKFRSs (Amendment)
B BHREER(BET)

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
BB ERZE 15 (EET)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendment)

%ﬁ@ﬂﬁm%m%&%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%
£38% ((55])

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendment)

%ﬁ@ﬂﬁm%m%&%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%
EXAEHC )

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

BB ERE275 (B5])

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BB KRS ERE105 BB
%R 285% ({£3T)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendment)

B REERE10%  BARE
WEERE 125 kBB ER
E28% (1&5])

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

BAMBREENB 1R EET)
HKFRS 14
BBMBREEAE 145

HKFRS 15
BBMBREEAE5H
HKFRS 9

N

BEMBREENFR

2.1 REEE )

TESTHRRBEw

211 B BERESBRKBEEH D)

BB EIFTER K ER
BEET » MR —F—F
FPH—H B iR

BRI BCF R R LK
TR IEFIERA -

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

—E-TEE_T-_SRBFANBRERI
EEE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

2 —ER_T-CFAHNERNRRELR
2 FEH#

Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

RERMEHE  BEHK

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

R _T-MERREANKREER
ZEEYE

The disclosure initiative

e

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation

BRNERBHEZ RN

Agriculture: bearer plants

B¥  AEMEY

Equity method in separate financial statements

BB RE B

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture

REENABENRARAEOE ZAENERMT

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation
exception
REER - ERaGARNGIIMER

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations

WA EXKIER 2 G:NE

Regulatory deferral accounts

EERIERF

Revenue from contracts with customers

REZEPANZKE

Financial instruments

$HIAE

2014/154F 5§

Effective for annual

period beginning
on or after

RUT B#R 2%

RN EEARER

1 July 2014
“T-mELHA—H

1 July 2014
“T-mELHA—H
1 July 2014
“T-mELHA—H
1 January 2016
“Z-—R¥—H—H
1 January 2016
“Z-—R¥—H—-H
1 January 2016
—2—"¥-HA-H

1 January 2016
“Z-—R¥—H—-H
1 January 2016
—Z—"¥-H-H
1 January 2016
“Z-—R¥—H—-H
1 January 2016

—T-"¥—-H—H

1 January 2016

—E-"¥-HA-H
1 January 2016
2% -H-H
1 January 2017
—T—+F-H-H
1 January 2018
—Z-\$-H—-H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

(©

New standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but not effective for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 April
2014 and have not been early adopted:
(Continued)

The Group has not early adopted these new
standards and amendments to the existing
standards in the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2015. The Group plans
to apply the above standards and amendments
when they become effective. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the
related impact to the Group and it is not yet
in a position to state whether any substantial
changes to Group's significant accounting
policies and presentation of the financial
information will result.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation
as from the Company’s first financial year
commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in
accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of expected impact of the
changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period
of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). It has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and only the presentation and the
disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements will be affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary amounts reported by subsidiaries

have

been adjusted to conform with the Group’s

accounting policies.

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not re-measured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners of the subsidiary
in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

2

TERHBERE W

2.2 MEAR#)
221 68k#E)

2014/154F 5§

(a)

(b)

(c)

RIEIER (8)

PREEEAE - NRWE
TSR RS S
B R AR SR B U
77 2 B A s U B A
Bz AR EEBRAMK
BrEHEEFEZR
AEE HEBURE
SRR - INERBERE AN
BT - FEEAE -
A HE TR IF 1 B 5 B 5T
AT st B 2 # 71
ERFTEE QA&
EFEcAREE H
EREEREAFERANI
BmRPHER -

TEH KL FERIHS
VPNTE dtd

ZRER [ B B SRR A
mETM A EHREE
HIERNRZ S AR AER
X5 - BB QB
BEUNRERMBES
MEITHR H » B (Y
EEEN DA EER
FERE G AT AR B BT B
AFEEREEMNZR
RSt o MIFFERR
MBS MR E TR
SRR -

HEHE 2 A
EAKETBEAEG

%, EERNTARE
RN K EEFHEE B
EXNFEENAEE
REENZSHEEDT
MR - AABESIRK
BRamERBARME
K FSARREME © 1B/
2 RERTREE -
SN - RN E AR S
WatiER EZ B AR
MER S5 - RIBINA
SECERREHREE
ESBENTAAR -
EERE TR HE AR
BMEERNSELE
WEH D BERS °

eprint EEAR AT 75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies

76

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.3 Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint
ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint venture
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint
venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for
as goodwill. When the Group's share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of the joint ventures have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the chairman and executive directors of the
Group that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Group’s functional
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2

(Continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies

78

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Current translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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TESTHRRBEw

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.5 IMEEBE m)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
(Continued)

(d) HESMEBRBIHERE)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result HE D HE e BN EE
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that %ﬁgﬁ BINETE 7 B
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share NT IR B EN

of accumulated currency translation differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other

BZEELIREHNFE T
R R TN EREaE
R BLATAEME D HE (A

partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s REBMPBLRATIHE L0
ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that 2 P RS BT RS
do not result in the Group losing significant influence BEReERAREFAES A

or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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All other repairs and maintenance are charged to in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the period in which they are incurred.
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80

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Leasehold improvements

Computer, furniture and
equipment

Motor vehicles

2% per annum

6.7% per annum
20% per annum
20% per annum

20% per annum

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
category: loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to be
settled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise trade receivables
(Note 17), other receivables (Note 18), amounts due from
joint ventures (Note 34), bank deposit (Note 19) and
cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If a
loan or held-to-maturity investment has a floating interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of inventories comprises
materials to be consumed in the rendering of services.
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligation to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.15 Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.16 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in equity. In this case the tax is
also recognised directly in equity.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where
the Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries and joint arrangements, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are
recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.19 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
banks on behalf of subsidiaries or related parties to secure
loans and other banking facilities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

2.19 Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

219 BKEREN &)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time
of signature is zero because all guarantees are agreed on
arm’s length terms and the value of the premium agreed
corresponds to the value of the guarantee obligation.
No receivable for the future premiums is recognised.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the
initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the guarantee. These estimates
are determined based on experience of similar transactions
and history of past losses, supplemented by management'’s
judgement. The fee income earned is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables, and represents amounts receivable
for the render of services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities, stated net of returns, rebates and
discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates of return
on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i) Revenue from the provision of printing services is
recognised when services are rendered.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the respective leases.

Management fee income, information technology
(.T.) related service income, pre-press processing and
customer services income are recognised when the
related service are rendered.

Scrap sale income is recognised when the scrap
materials are delivered to the customers.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes for its employees. Contributions are
made based on certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are recognised as employee benefit
expense as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the schemes. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits at the
earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits;
and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

2.22 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to save
or holding shares for a specified period of time).
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the
grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.

2.23 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

(Continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Summary of significant accounting policies

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no hedging
activities are undertaken by management.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and
its business is supported by an I.T. support services
centre located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from the exposure of Renminbi (“RMB")
against Hong Kong dollars. The Group does not
hedge its foreign exchange risk as its exposure to
foreign exchange risk is low as the Group’s cash
flows mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

At 31 March 2015, if Hong Kong dollar had
weakened/strengthened by 3% (31 March 2014:
3%) against RMB with all other variables held
constant, profit before income tax would have been
HK$ 1,903,000 lower/higher (2014: 1,825,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of net foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of RMB-denominated
bank deposits, other receivables and other payables.
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, other receivables and amounts due
from joint ventures. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

As at 31 March 2014, bank deposit is deposited at
a reputable financial institution. Management does
not expect any losses from non-performance by the
institution.

Most of the Group’s sales are settled by cash or
credit cards. Trade receivables of the Group are
mainly due from credit sales. The Group’s exposure
of concentration risk is insignificant as no external
customers contributed over 10% of the Group’s
trade receivables.

Based on the Group’s historical experiences in
collection of trade receivables, other receivables
and amounts due from joint ventures, the directors
consider the Group’s credit risk of these receivables
to be low.

The Group considers that adequate provision for
unrecoverable trade receivables and amounts due
from joint ventures has been made in the relevant
accounting periods after considering the Group’s
experience in collection of trade receivables and
amounts due from joint ventures.

Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.
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3

Financial risk management (continved)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient cash flows of banking facilities,
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, which
are generated from the financing activities and the
operating activities, respectively.

Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the directors do not consider that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment.

The directors believe that such borrowings and
obligations under finance leases will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 BKREBREREw
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MKREBEE®)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (0 REBELE®)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TEROMAEENSHE
liabilities into relevant maturity groups based on & DIREERBRATHTE
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan EERABHHE WEFA
agreements with the consideration of the effect of RERBEEGEFOTED R
repayment on demand clause. RIERASIERAE R -

Between Between
On Within 1and2 2and5
demand 1 year years years Total

BEX -¥R -EZf  CEBEfF fast
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TER TER TR T

As at 31 March 2015 RZB-RE=A=1-H
Borrowings and interest expenses  fEE R F| S % 3,810 - - - 3,810
Obligations under finance leases ~ BEHEE THETK

and interest expenses MEFEX 2,139 8,091 5,846 1,358 17,434
Trade payables EUTE = 24,274 = = 24,274
Other payables' iR - 1,308 - - 1,308
Amounts due to directors ENESZFE - 350 - - 350
As at 31 March 2014 RZB-ME=A=1+-H
Borrowings and interest expenses & & RFIEEZ 9,681 - - = 9,681
Obligations under finance leases ~ BEREE FHETR

and interest expenses HERX 4,036 8,108 8,091 7,204 27,439
Trade payables BN = 24,920 = = 24,920
Other payables’ AR = 1,658 = = 1,658
Amounts due to directors ENESHE - 350 = - 350

g The balance excludes advanced receipts from customers and g AT RIETERE P 8 RIE R
accrued expenses. FEETEA -
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 BBERERE
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiI%EABEZ®)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) "RBELEME)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TEROMAEENESHE
liabilities into relevant maturity groups based on & iR ER WS TE
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan FERABHHAE - UEFA
agreements and the effect of any repayment on R ERE RGN 2
demand clause is ignored. ¥ A ERE R HAEE R -
Between Between
Within 1and2 2and5
1 year years years Total
—ER -Z2F —ERE -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T AL
As at 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=1-H
Borrowings and interest expenses f&& R F 5% 3,813 - - 3,813
Obligations under finance leases  BY&EE FHIEI R
and interest expenses FlERX 10,010 6,111 1,358 17,479
Trade payables BHERE 24,274 - - 24,274
Other payables' ARG EL 1,308 - - 1,308
Amounts due to directors EET 350 - - 350
As at 31 March 2014 RZZ-ME=R=+-H
Borrowings and interest expenses £ & RIS % 9,717 - - 9,717
Obligations under finance leases  BYEEBTHNELR
and interest expenses B R 10,114 10,010 7,469 27,593
Trade payables B ENE 24,920 = = 24,920
Other payables’ HAb R 1,658 = = 1,658
Amounts due to directors ENESFE 350 = = 350
g The balance excludes advanced receipts from customers and g AT BIETERE P 8 RIE R
accrued expenses. FEFTER -
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96

Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group'’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings,
obligations under finance leases, amounts due from
joint ventures, bank deposit and cash at banks.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2015, the Group’s interest-
bearing assets were bank deposit, which is of fixed
interest rates and cash at banks, which bears variable
interest rates.

The Group’s income and cash flows from operations
were substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the significant interest-bearing
assets were either fixed or not expected to fluctuate
significantly.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2015, borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash and cash
equivalents held at variable rates.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, if interest rates
on borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit before income tax would have been
approximately HK$67,000 lower/higher (2014:
HK$235,000 lower/higher). The sensitivity analysis
has been determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date.
The 100 basis point increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of reasonable possible
change in the interest rate which has the most impact
on the Group over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2015, obligations under
finance leases at fixed rates expose the Group to
insignificant fair value interest rate risk as the fixed
rates approximate market interest rates.

eprint Group Limited  Annual Report 2014/15
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 BMBKEBREREw

3.2 EXERER

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to finance
its operations with its owned capital and to safeguard the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders and return capital to shareholders.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total debt divided by total equity. Total debt
is calculated as borrowings and obligations under finance
leases.

The gearing ratios as at 31 March 2014 and 2015 were as
follows:

AEBENEAREERRE %L‘/{EE
BEAEFLEAREA DA M
BEE - LA?%Hx%hT @i&&?’%ﬁ
510 & Rz

RERARENER  AKEA]
ABRNTHRRZBEZENEER

ARBRTRED  REAEARS

PR B A AT o SR TR
W PR SR « (ko
EREEERRAEEE A
fE3tg -

RZE-—NMER_ZT—HAF=A
“t—HMEEARBLERESM
T

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—8H
2015 2014
—E-—AEF —E—pE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Borrowings (Note 26) BE(HE26) 3,810 9,681

Obligations under finance lease MEMSETHEE

(Note 27) (M47%27) 16,922 26,314
Total debt BEHRE 20,732 35,995
Total equity S HAEE 160,999 164,794
Gearing ratio EEBELR 13% 22%

The decrease in the gearing ratio during 2015 resulted
primarily from repayment of obligations under finance
lease by the Group.

BEAGBHER _T-—AFATHK
TE E‘ﬂﬁé$%@%ﬁi§mﬂ§%ﬁiﬁlﬁT
BB EFTEL -
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Financial risk management (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial
assets, including bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, other receivables and amounts due
from joint ventures, current financial liabilities, including
trade payables, other payables, amounts due to directors,
obligations under finance leases and borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities,
and non-current liabilities, including obligations under
finance leases and borrowings as their interest rates
approximate market interest rates.

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to
the Group for similar financial instruments.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated provision for impairment of receivables
from third parties and joint ventures

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
from third parties and joint ventures based on an
assessment of the recoverablllty of these receivables.
Provisions for impairment are applied to these receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be recoverable. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amounts of receivables and doubtful debt expense in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

eprint Group Limited  Annual Report 2014/15
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AR AT RAE »

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 4

(Continued)

(@) Estimated provision for impairment of
receivables from third parties and joint ventures
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the total amount of
the provision was HK$28,000 (2014: HK$11,000). If the
financial conditions of customers and joint ventures of the
Group were to change, resulting in an impairment of their
abilities to make payments, additional provision may be
required.

(b) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different from those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(c) Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain for the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the Board of Directors of the Group. As the Group is
principally engaged in the provision of printing services, which
are subject to similar business risk, and resources are allocated
based on what is beneficial to the Group in enhancing the value
as a whole rather than any specific unit, the Board of Directors
considers the performance assessment of the Group should be
based on the profit before income tax of the Group as a whole
and regards the Group’s business as a single operating segment
and reviews financial information accordingly. Therefore, the
Board of Directors considers there to be only one operating
segment under the requirements of HKFRS 8-Operating
Segments.
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5 Segment information (continued)

The subsidiary incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") provides information technology support services
within the Group. Since the Group only operates in Hong Kong
and the Group’s assets are mainly located in Hong Kong, no
geographical segment information is presented.

For the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015, no external
customers contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue.

6 Revenue, other income and other losses —

6

DEER @)

RARZEARLAMBE ([ ]) MR
WEBAREAEERIDREE AR
EBRTE - HRAEBEREELEAR
SEMEETEZEMRES  WMEMIES
EERIZ2F o
HE-_ZT-NEE_ZT—HAF=A
=+—HIFE BEIDBEFERB
B10% K AEE W ©

Wi - HBAREAMBER -

net %
2015 2014
—B-EE ZET—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Revenue Iz
Provision of printing services RALED R AR 75 316,547 304,562
Other income HA A
Management fee income (Note 34) EEEWA(HFE34) 240 270
Scrap sales EERH & 5,333 4,748
Rental income (Note 34) FEWA (FF5E34) 275 -
License fee income (Note 34) hE PR B U A (P 5E34) 962 187
Pre-press processing and customer ENRI M T R PR EKA
service fee income (Note 34) (Ff5E34) 543 839
Sundry income FETE U A 383 121
7,736 6,165
Other losses — net HAhE51E — 558
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEWE - BE KX EEE
and equipment (Note 30) (FF5E30) (1,208) (413)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note)  H & BB A &z (M) 66 -
Exchange gain/(loss) — net bE 5 Wz, (E518) — F %8 282 (709)
(860) (1,122)

Note:

GEX

RZT—HWESA=H  FAERMEERG6130
& 7T 8 & & [f B 2 7] eprint Bannershop Group
LimitedABB T 2 REHE F—EBILE=T -

On 3 June 2014, eprint Bannershop Group Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary with
carrying amount of net liabilities of HK$66,130 was disposed to an independent
third party for a consideration of HK$8.
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7 Expenses by nature

N

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

BIEHERA « HERD BRI
KBS ENOEZIFNT

2015 2014
—E—hF —E—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of materials (Note 16) MEA (FEE16) 106,784 112,220
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREN N &
— Audit services —FiTARTE 1,350 1,202
— Non-audit services — TR 491 310
Employee benefits expense (Note 8) B E /@45 (MI:E8) 79,950 73,374
Depreciation of property, plant and W RENMREITE
equipment (Note 14) (Bfs£14) 12,016 11,269
Outsourced customer support expenses YpHIEF X &S 13,433 11,717
Subcontracting fee SN E 19,386 8,343
Operating lease rental of premises MERREHEEHERS
and equipment 16,034 15,672
Repairs and maintenance BB RIRE 4,414 3,646
Distribution costs SAki =1 DN 9,638 7,414
Utility expenses ARARB N 6,624 6,526
Professional expenses incurred in ANAR EMEENBEMT
connection with the Company’s ([EmAEZ])
Listing (“Listing expenses”) - 17,626
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 WG TE R E B S
receivables (Note 17) (Bds%17) 28 11
Recovery of trade receivables Wz [B] 5% A i 85 Y B 5 e IR
previously written off (30) -
Others Hith 16,613 13,371
Total cost of sales, selling and SHERA  HERDHEAIUAR
distribution expenses and THHAX 2%
administrative expenses 286,731 282,701
Others mainly represent credit card handling charges, HEMEZEERARFESE - BEREH

advertising and promotion expenses and telecommunication

expenses.

Note:

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 3 December 2013 (the “Listing”).

P X BB o

BEE -

AARBRMNER-_ZT—=F+-_A=REBEEHA
RSMARAR (B DEREMR( L) °

2014/154F 5§
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8 Employee benefits expense (including EERFHAZ(BIEEERS
directors and senior management’s REBBEHMN)
emoluments)

2014

—E—hF —E—OF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT THT

Salaries and allowances e NEEL 68,568 61,395

Bonuses B4 5,175 4,531

Share-based payments to directors and it ¥ =5 k& 8 fBEAERM X

employees (Note 23) (BHE23) 1,168 1,696
Pension costs — contributions to RIRE AN — 1) R T HFRET B

defined contribution plans (Note a) (KtzEa) 4,083 4,549

Welfare and other benefits t&@x & E AR ER 956 1,203

79,950 73,374

Notes:

(a) Pension — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its employees to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group's
subsidiaries (the employer) and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme generally at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions
of each of the employer and the employees are subject to a maximum
contribution of HK$1,500 (2014: HK$1,250) per month and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. The Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group contributes to
state-administered retirement plans for employees in the PRC. For the PRC,
the employees contribute up to 8% (2014: 8%) of their basic salaries, while
the Group contributes approximately 13% to 14% (2014: 17% to 22%) of
such salaries. The Group has no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post-retirements benefits beyond these contributions. The
state-administrated retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the amount of the Group’s employer
contributions to defined contribution plans was HK$4,083,000 (2014:
HK$4,549,000). There were forfeited contributions to the MPF Scheme of
HK$248,000 which has been utilised for the year ended 31 March 2015
(2014: Nil). As at 31 March 2015, contribution payable to the MPF Scheme
amounted to HK$462,000 (2014: HK$426,000).
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8 Employee benefits expense (including 8 EEFIBEX(EREERS
directors and senior management’s REBEBEHMN) «
emoluments) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) BtsE : (&)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) E= a0
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the B AR AT ESN S EENT -

Company are as follows:

2015 2014

= Sk —F-mE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

— Fees - 3,240 1,113

— Salaries and allowances - HeRERL 3,876 2,994

- Bonuses - {E4T 1,726 185
— Pension costs — contributions to defined — RIRE A — MR E HEFRET B4R

contribution plans 54 45

— Share-based payments - fERR R 466 1,146

9,362 5,483
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8 Employee benefits expense (including 8 EEIHZ(BHREERS
directors and senior management’s REBEHMN) o
emoluments) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) izt © (&)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEFH (8)
Mr. She Siu Kee William is the chief executive officer of the Group. The KRBEEEARNER ZITREE - NATIE
emoluments of each director of the Company for the year ended 31 March E-E—FAF=-A=+—BHUIEERESEY
2015 is set out as below. FENETIT o

Pension costs -
contribution
Salaries to defined

and Discretionary Performance  contribution  Share-based

allowance bonuses bonuses plans payments

BREHAK-

| RELK
e HEREW BERA RATA SEMR  BRERX st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign TER TR TR TiEgn TER TR

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. She Siu Kee William RBERE 600 2,671 - 1,432 18 - 4,721
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai BuREE 240 482 126 - 18 233 1,099
Mr. Fung Hong Keung BRBLE 240 723 168 - 18 233 1,382

Non-executive Directors FATES

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki pre-kigy 420 - - _ - - 420
Mr. Lam Shing Kai HERERE 420 - - - - _ 220
Mr. Leung Wai Ming REREE 420 - - - _ _ 220
Mr. Leung Yat Pang Rkt 420 - - - - - 420

Independent Non-executive BUFHTES

Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Yu BEREE 120 - - - - _ 120
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen X EE 120 - = = = - 120
Ms. Luk Mei Yan FEERLt 120 o - - - - 120
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah BEHERL 120 - - - _ _ 120

3,240 3,876 294 1,432 54 466 9,362
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BT BERRM

B (BEESRS

8 Employee benefits expense (including 8 {EE&E
BREEEHM) =

directors and senior management’s
emoluments) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) BtsE : (&)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

by EEHM (&)

The emoluments of each director of the Company for the year ended 31 AABEREERNHEE-_ZT—NEF="A=+—
March 2014 is set out as below. HIEFERFMESIAT -

Pension costs -
contribution
Salaries to defined
and  Discretionary  contribution  Share-based
Fees allowance bonuses payment

A 7
He  HerEm A AR BRERX +
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TET FHL THT THT

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. She Siu Kee William RIBEFLLE 225 1,794 - 15 - 2,034
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai IR EE 90 480 111 15 573 1,269
Mr. Fung Hong Keung TERRSR A 90 720 74 15 573 1,472
Non-executive Directors kHITES

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEHEL 138 - - - - 138
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MR E 138 - - - - 138
Mr. Leung Wai Ming PERREE 138 - - - - 138
Mr. Leung Yat Pang R—BEE 138 - - - - 138

Independent Non-executive BAFHTES

Directors

Mr. Chan Chi Yu EREAE 39 - _ _ _ 39

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen B 39 - - - - 39

Ms. Luk Mei Yan BEXB 2t 39 = = = = BY

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah BESERHL 39 _ - — y 39

1,113 2,994 185 45 1,146 5,483
The remuneration shown above represents remuneration received and ERATFMIEZSESREBEE_T—WF
receivable from the Group by these directors in their capacity as employees kR=ZZ—RF=A=+—HILFEEALE
to the Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the Company for the BEEE R HEABAARESMC I EZEK
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015. (The underlying share options of the AREBWFH o ERFIRBRERS 2184
share-based payment shown above were cancelled on 9 May 2014 pursuant BRECAR-T—NFRANBREHES
to a resolution passed by the Board.) No directors waived or agreed to waive SEBH—IBREEE  c REE_Z—UE
any emoluments for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015. E=—Z—RF=A=+—HILFE BEE

ERRXFAERREEAMNE -
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B O BERRME

8 Employee benefits expense (including 8 EEIHZ(BHREERS
directors and senior management’s REBEHMN) o
emoluments) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) BMisE : (&)
(@} Five highest paid individuals (© REEEEAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group AEENAEBREFALTEE=RESR (=
include three directors (2014: three directors), whose emoluments are TE: —K/ESE)  ZEEENEME
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the REXZHE DT R - ENBTREA
remaining two individuals (2014: two individuals) are as follows: F(=Z—F : MEAL)NFEMOT ¢
2015 2014
—2-RF —F-pmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
— Salaries and allowances - Fre ROFR 1,262 1,016
— Discretionary bonuses - BIBIEAL 226 165
— Pension costs — contributions to defined — RN — ) S 7E B FRET B0
contribution plans 35 30
— Share-based payments - BBARRER S 234 573
1,757 1,784
The emoluments of these individuals fell within the following bands: ZEATHHFMN FATEHE :

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or other AEEBREREANESKAGERTALTE
members of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, upon R EMK B XN ERRSI MBEARER -
joining the Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss of office. FEERIE - BRI E ) R E) S E AR
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B O BERRME

9 Finance income/(costs) — net 9 BMEBEWA(RZAX)-—FEHE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Finance income B E WA
— Interest income from bank deposits  — $R1TEXF B U A 2,365 1,147
— Interest income from financial lease - [E—FR&ZDER
receivable from a joint venture BERE ZF WA
(Note 34) (Bt3£34) 84 =
2,449 1,147
Finance costs B & A AN
— Finance charge on obligations - FHRMEMEETERD
under finance lease & E A (712) (995)
— Interest expenses on borrowings - EEFMBERX (78) (899)
___________________________________________________________________________________________ (7909 ~ (1,894)
Finance income/(costs) — net BEW A (KAN) — %58 1,659 (747)
10 Investments in subsidiaries - Company 10 MIEARIMNKRE —ZXAQF
2015
—E-AHF —T-ImF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Investments, at cost BB IR
— Unlisted shares il 73,897 73,897
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B O BERRME

10 Investments in subsidiaries - Company

(Continued)

The following is a list of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015:

Name of company

Directly held:
BEBA

eprint Digital Holding
Limited

Promise Network Holding

Limited

E-Print Group Limited

eprint Holdings Limited

e-print Trading Limited

108

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity

R A 3L 3t B IR
pes § ok obid

The British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), limited liability
company

RERUBE([RBRX
BEEREERR

The BVI, limited liability
company
RBRLESAR

BEAA

The BVI, limited liability
company
ABRLESEAR

BEAT

The BVI, limited liability
company
RBRLESAR

BEAT

The BVI, limited liability
company
RBRLZESEAR

BEAT

Proportion
of ordinary
shares

held by
the Group
(%)

Particulars of
issued and
paid up share capital

FEERE
EERLA
(%)

BERTR
BERAHR

1 ordinary share of 100%
US$1 each

1REREEETH
TRk

2,887 ordinary shares of 100%
US$1 each

2,887 GIREE 1 ETTH
LiER

50,000 ordinary shares of 100%
US$1 each

50,000/ BREE1ETH)
LiER

1 ordinary share of 100%
US$1 each

1REREEIETH
LiER

1 ordinary share of 100%
US$1 each

1REREEIETH
LiaR

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
(%)
FERER
BREER
]

(%)

10 MBATIMNKRE - XD T @

RZE—RFE=A=+—H KEBAA
HEMT

Principal activities
and place
of operation

FREBEHR
RN

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BEREHER

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BEREHER

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BEREER

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BEREHER

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BEREHER
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B O BERRME

10 Investments in subsidiaries - Company

(Continued)

Name of company

Indirectly held:
&R

Promise Network Printing
Limited
RAFRLEORBRAR

Invoice Limited

EHHRBRAR

Kimley Technology (HK)
Limited
SRR (BFR)AERAA

Dajinlai Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited*

REREHR ORI
BR AR

Lucky Gainer Limited
HERERAT]

Design Easy Limited
Rt 5 (BB BRAR

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity

R A 3L 3t B IR
EERRERY

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BEAREEAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BEAREMEAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BEAREMLAR

The PRC, limited liability
company

FEARREARA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BEAREMEAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BEAREEAR

Proportion

of ordinary

shares

Particulars of held by
issued and the Group
paid up share capital (%)

FEEER
ERTR EERLA
BRRAFE (%)

2,886 ordinary shares of 100%
HK$1 each

2,886k B R E (B 178 TT4)
LRk

1,000 ordinary shares of 100%
HK$1 each

1,000/ BAREE 1B TTH)
gl

2,775 ordinary shares of 100%
HK$1 each

2,775 BREE 1B T
gl

1,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
of RMB1 each

1,000,000 &R EE
AR TR LB

2 ordinary shares of 100%
HK$1 each

2R EREEETH
LRk

2,775 ordinary shares of 100%
HK$1 each

2,775 EREE 1A TH
£

2014/154F 5§

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
(%)
FERER
RELER
te i

(%)

10 MBARNKRE -A28 @)

Principal activities
and place
of operation

FERREBR
EEMH

Provision of printing
services in
Hong Kong
EEBBREERIRY

Provision of printing
services in
Hong Kong
ERBREERIRY

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BEREER

Provision of I.T.
services in the PRC

Fer Bl R AT R
PR

Provision of
management
services in
Hong Kong

EBBRMEEERYE

Provision of printing
services in Hong
Kong

EBBREERIRY

eprint EEERA T
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B O BERRME

10 Investments in subsidiaries - Company

(Continued)

Name of company

Indirectly held: (continued)

RERE (8

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity

kR 3L 3t B IR
rRRRRE

Proportion

of ordinary

shares

Particulars of held by
issued and the Group
paid up share capital (%)

FEEER
ERTR EBR LA
HRRAFE (%)

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
(%)
FERER
BEZER
te i

(%)

10 MBATIMNKRE - XD T @

Principal activities
and place
of operation

FERBEBR
EELE

Digital Printing Centre Hong Kong, limited 10,000 ordinary shares of 51% 49%  Investment holding
Limited liability company HK$1 each in Hong Kong
BEERELARAT  EAARALAR 10,000 SR A(E15TEA] ERRALN
T
Eprint Australia Pty Ltd*  Australia, limited liability 1 ordinary share of 100% - Provision of printing
company AUD1 each services in
BNEREEAR REREEVETH Australia
gl ERMRAEENRIRTS
Ebanner Solution Sdn. Malaysia, limited liability 2 ordinary shares of 100% - Provision of printing
Bhd.? company RM1 each services in
BRARERELAR QREREEISEL Malaysia
gl e 55 3R 79 S0 R it ETT
R
& These companies are not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. # ZERNAVWIEME G KES T ESE

As at 31 March 2015, there is no non-controlling interests that

% o

RZZE-—RF=A=+—H Xx&EEH

EEAFER R

are material to the Group.

=,
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B O BERRME

11 Investments in joint ventures 11 A2 ENRE

2015 2014
—E—hF —ET—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
At beginning of year REH) 2,922 1,235
Addition (Note 1) AE (1) 4,000 =
Share of profits of joint ventures BiREEERF 109 1,776
Currency translation differences M H =58 (630) (89)
At end of year RF 4L 6,401 2,922

(a) Details of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: (a) AEEZEELEFBOT -

Place of business/ Percentage of Principal Measurement
Name of company country of incorporation  ownership interest activities method

INGIES ERE MR LER EZEAL kS
2015 2014
—E-FF —E-mF

BERES EE-9:0:

E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia 30% 30%  Provision of Equity
BRAET printing services 1%
R EN IR
e-banner Limited Hong Kong 40% - Digital printing Equity
& HASEN R R
E-Print Bannershop Limited ~ Hong Kong = 50% Leasing of Equity
(Note 2) &6 premises %
(M45E2) NEHRE
Note: BT
1. During the year, eprint Holdings Limited (“eprint Holdings"), a 1. RERA - RNAREEN B 2R Fleprint

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, established a joint venture
company, e-banner Limited (“e-banner”) with an independent
third party. The consideration of the investment in e-banner is
HK$4,000,000 and eprint Holdings has a 40% shareholding in
e-banner Limited.

2. The investment in E-Print Bannershop Limited has been disposed of 2.
on 3 June 2014 at nil consideration.

2014/154F 5§

Holdings Limited([eprint Holdings )
H—ZBIYF=ZFTRLAEDE
e-banner Limited ([ e-banner]) o %
e-banner#% & #) X {& /4,000,000 %
JC * fMeprint Holdings# A e-banner
Limited 40%## 2 °

FAE-Print Bannershop Limited#Ji& &

ERZZ—WUFENA=ZBUZTRED
% °

eprint EEHR QA 1
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B O BERRME

11 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 11 EELENRE
(b) Commitments in respect of joint ventures (b) EELEMNEE
The Group has no commitments relating to its joint AREBTEEBE S DERAIE -
ventures.
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s BEABAAEBRE EEEANIA
interest in the joint ventures. BE -
(c) Summarised financial information for joint () EELENBEREE
ventures
Set out below is the summarised financial information T X & 5l E-Print Solutions Sdn.
for E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. (“E-Print Solutions”) Bhd. ( [ E-Print Solutions | ) &
and e-banner which are accounted for using the equity e-bannerf G EREE » I DAKE
method. w=AEAER ©
Summarised statement of financial position RN R EE
e-banner! E-Print Solutions?
2015 2015 2014
—E-hHFE CZEB-HFE —ZT—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&xT THT
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFeFMBEIEE 3,174 6,602 7,492
Other current assets (excluding EfnsEE (T
cash and cash equivalents) RERBESZEIER) 2,650 6,278 4,289
Total current assets YA B A 5,824 12,880 11,781
Current liabilities REEE
Financial liabilities (excluding tRHEBE(TEEES
trade payables) FETRIE) (2,764) (4,562) (3,562)
Other current liabilities HErsiaE(eiE
(including trade payables) B S FRIE) (12,355) (7,962) (8,350)
Total current liabilities BREEE (15,119) (12,524) (11,912)
Non-current assets EREEE
Assets BE 18,805 38,276 19,465
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Financial liabilities TRIAE (6,103) (21,967) (9,808)
Other liabilities HEmaE - (73) (16)
Total non-current liabilities HIERB A E (6,103) (22,040) (9,824)
Net assets EEFHE 3,407 16,592 9,510
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CXatlbit e
11 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 11 EELENRE
(c) Summarised financial information for joint (c) EELERBEREBE»)

ventures (Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income ZERERHE

e-banner! E-Print Solutions?
2015 2015 2014
—T-1f —T-HF C—TWF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHExT T
Revenue Wz 25,175 70,262 57,629
Depreciation e (1,119) (2,753) (729)
Finance cost B AN (143) (1,084) (933)
(Loss)/profit before income tax  BRFT{SH: AT (E51E) SH A (6,593) 9,912 8,019
Income tax expense S - (759) (2,100)
Net (loss)/profit and total (B8) SR EREE
comprehensive (loss)/income (E18),Wziiess (6,593) 9,153 5919
The information above reflects the amounts presented NEBERRMEECENTKEERANE
in the financial statements of the joint ventures and not TR EER - WIEAEBFTHEEE @ WK
for the Group's share of those amounts, adjusted for HASEHEEEME  BESHBRNE
differences in accounting policies between the Group and BIEHAE -

the joint ventures.

Reconciliation of summarised financial information M ERBZNE R

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information MBERBENHREINENEGE R
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in the joint KRR AR EIE ©

ventures.
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B O BERRME

11 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 11 EELENRE
(c) Summarised financial information for joint (c) EELXMBERME#)

ventures (Continued)

Summarised financial information B E R E
e-banner! E-Print Solutions?
2015 2015 2014
—2-hF C—B-HF _—TWF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHExT F#&xT T
Opening net assets as at 1 April  7AP0 A — B EHEEF5E - 9,510 3,875
Issuance of share capital A% A BE1T 10,000 - -
(Loss)/profit for the year ERN(EE), 7R (6,593) 9,153 5,919
Currency translation differences [ 3,2 5 = (2,071) (284)
Closing net assets FREEFHE 3,407 16,592 9,510
Interests in joint ventures BEDTEMELR 40% 30% 30%
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 1,363 4,977 2,853
Goodwill P - 61 69
Carrying amount REE 1,363 5,038 2,922
f e-banner Limited was incorporated on 1 April 2014 and no financial ! e-banner Limited?®d =& — M 404 A
result of the company for the year ended 31 March 2014 was —BKY MEBE-ZT—NF=A
presented. =+—BHIEFE  ZARBEVKE
E25 -
2 The financial statements of the company are not audited by 2 Z A2 BRIk A IE B 7 SRk E
PricewaterhouseCoopers. RS
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& Ot B ot
12 Income tax expense 12 FifSHimY
2015 2014
—EB-HF —ZT—MmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Current income tax g HATSH
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBNER 4,430 5,536
— PRC corporate income tax — B EMSH 3 15
Under/(over) provision in prior year F—EFERETR S (BEERE) 42 (132)
4,475 5,419
Deferred income tax EERTISH 1,676 1,116
Income tax expense — total PGB — 5 6,151 6,535
Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong REBFEMA LB AR EREFE
Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable et ERTRFIZ16.5%MHEE(=ZF
profits for the year (2014: 16.5%). Subsidiary incorporated in —PEF 2 16.5% ) BABRBFFHE - R
the PRC is subject to PRC corporate income tax based on the B S A SZ B0 B B A ) B IR AR SR AR B R
statutory income tax rate of 25% for the year (2014: 25%) as BFSE AR REAREENEEEEM
determined in accordance with the relevant PRC income tax 1SBBE25% (= — U4 : 25% ) &
rules and regulations. The Company has not been subject to any R EEATEHR o B8 H M A
taxation in the Cayman Islands as it does not have any assessable R EAE R ERTRF - AR FEE
profit for the periods since its incorporation. HNERFRESESTHIE o

I
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B OB R I

12 Income tax expense (Continued) 12 Fi88ilRX e
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs kAN 5= B B Bk BT 1S 7 B i A M 28 5 40 /Y
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted MIEEE A E AR BE R EE R
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities AHERNEFAMNEFEHHEFTEDN
in the respective jurisdictions as follows: BReFEAM TR - ABERLAT :

2015 2014
—E—hF —E—UF

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Profit before income tax & B 15554 BT Y A1) 38,460 27,933

Tax calculated at a weighted average % N[E FARE[R B9 hIkE 15

tax rate in different tax jurisdiction HEGTEIE 6,273 4,614
Tax effects of: T HIENRIELE
— Share of profits of joint ventures - EhEEREZ R (18) (293)
— Income not subject to tax - BAHRHA (606) (352)
— Expenses not deductible for tax - NA R X
purposes 519 2,722
— Utilisation of previously - A AT RERN R IEEE
unrecognised tax losses (284) (102)
— Tax losses and other temporary —- WERRELE SR AT IEES
differences for which no deferred BRHEAME R ZRE
income tax was recognised 225 78
— Under/(over) provision in prior year - F—FE&ERRE
(B 42 (132)
6,151 6,535
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B O BERRME

13 Earnings per share

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for
the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015.

13 BRER
(a) EXR

BREARBNITIRBEANR B R
BABERENBRABRE _T—MF
R-_T—RF=-A=t—HIFE
BERTEBBINEFOHE -

Profit attributable to equity holders

AR R R A ARG T

of the Company (HK$'000) (F%&mT) 32,335 21,577
Weighted average number BEETERARMETHE(TR)
of ordinary shares in issue
(thousands) 500,000 415,753
FAREARZF) (L) 6.47 5.19

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
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B O BERRME

13 Earnings per share (continued)

118

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Group has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the Group’s shares)
based on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as below is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise
of the share options.

13 EREN =

(b)

w8

BREERNIRBRBEINNE
BT ENEFHRETE - X
BREERMBEEHETERRK -
ARAHE - RECEEL B
BRE - SLBRUEM S - BRI
RITEBIAETH SR RN E
KERTEETIRECRAAEE
(RASEEG O FAFEMSK
BET)BANBRMDERE - LA
AAENRDEE EHE BTN
B (RRBEEEITER)ERLE -

Profit attributable to equity holders 782 &l#Ezs 5B A FE(G i A

of the Company (HK$’'000) (F%&mT) 32,335 21,577
Weighted average number BT E MR IR 5 #

of ordinary shares in issue (FA)

(thousands) 500,000 415,753
Adjustment for: S EEL

— Share options (thousands) - R (FA%) 327 216
Weighted average number of TSR 8RR

ordinary shares for diluted INEFEHE(FKR)

earnings per share (thousands) 500,327 415,969
Diluted earnings per share TR EERFR GBL)

(HK cents) 6.46 5.19
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B O BERRME

14 Property, plant and equipment - Group 14 Y% BERRE-FEE
Computer,
Plant and Leasehold furniture and Motor
machinery  improvements equipment vehicles Total
BERH#E HENERE EBK KERRG HE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thn T Thr Thn
At 1 April 2013 R-E-Z£MmA-A
Cost A 125,317 8,121 6,264 1,278 140,980
Accumulated depreciation 2:hE (29,931) (5,094) (3,687) (294) (39,006)
Net book amount KEFE 95,386 3,027 2577 984 101,974
Year ended 31 March 2014 HE-E-PE
ZA=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEESE 95,386 3,027 2577 984 101,974
Additions RE 7,345 1,875 3,902 - 13,122
Disposals (Note 30) HE(HiFE30) (107) (283) (25) = (415)
Depreciation (Note 7) e (8,726) (1,170) (1,118) (255) (11,269)
Currency translation differences EHiEE = - 2 - 2
Closing net book amount EXERTE 93,898 3,449 5,338 729 103,414
At 31 March 2014 R=Z-BE=A=+-A
Cost A 132,507 8,914 9,880 1,278 152,579
Accumulated depreciation 2:E (38,609) (5,465) (4,542) (549) (49,165)
Net book amount e 93,898 3,449 5338 729 103,414
Year ended 31 March 2015 BZ-2-1%
ZA=T-RALEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 93,898 3,449 5,338 729 103,414
Additions e 5,055 699 1,986 - 7,740
Disposals (Note 30) HE(HF30) (1373) (154) (15) - (1,542)
Depreciation (Note 7) e (8,944) (1,088) (1,729 (255) (12,016)
Currency translation differences EHEE = - 4 - 4
Closing net book amount EXEEFE 88,636 2,906 5,584 474 97,600
At 31 March 2015 R-B-EE=A=1-A
Cost B 135,316 9,183 11,811 1,278 157,588
Accumulated depreciation 2:thE (46,680 (6,277) (6,227) (804) (59,988)
Net book amount FHFE 88,036 2,906 5,584 474 97,600
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B O BERRME

14 Property, plant and equipment - Group 14 ¥ ¥ - MERZE —F5E

120

(Continued)

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has
been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

(%)

AEENYE  BERRBZNEDR

&R A SR PR

2015 2014

—E-—REF —E—O4E

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&ET TET

Cost of sales $HERK R 10,072 9,717
Administrative expenses TR 1,944 1,552
12,016 11,269

Machinery includes the following amounts where the Group is a
lessee under finance leases (Note 21):

HEBEATHAKEREREHEF

BEBAZ&FE(KIFE21) ¢

2015 2014

—E—FF —E Py

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Cost — capitalised finance leases R —BRLREHRE 50,804 50,804
Accumulated depreciation Z2HinE (10,093) (6,682)
Net book amount BRMEFE 40,711 44,122

The Group leases various machinery under non-cancellable
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are three to five years,
and ownership of the assets lie within the Group.
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B O BERRME

15 Financial instruments by category — Group 15 ZERIZSPHNEMITEH K&

and Company S & NN
The Group AEE
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables  profit or loss
RAREE
ERREKHE Sk 2 EE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FTHET
Assets EE
As at 31 March 2015 RZZ-HAF=A=1—H
Trade and other receivables (excluding B 5 R EMEWGR
prepayments) (TRERMRE) 3,039 - 3,039
Amounts due from joint ventures el A &S ETIF 2,293 - 2,293
Cash and cash equivalents Re kA EEEER 118,208 - 118,208
123,540 - 123,540
As at 31 March 2014 R-ZZ-mE=A=+—H
Trade and other receivables (excluding B 5 R EMEWGIE
prepayments) (MREENFE) 2,946 = 2,946
Amounts due from joint ventures A hETIE 479 - 479
Bank deposit RITTFN - 18,004 18,004
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESZEER 115,961 - 115,961
119,386 18,004 137,390

I
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B O BERRME

15 Financial instruments by category — Group 15 RERIESWER T HE — K&
and Company (continued) BRAAT =)

The Group (Continued) REB(2)

Other financial

liabilities at
amortised cost
REBHERATTE
HHEMESHEE
HK$'000
FHET
Liabilities =R
As at 31 March 2015 R-E—HF=A=+—H
Amounts due to directors e ZEEFHIE 350
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) & (TEIEMEHEAR) 3,810
Obligations under finance leases MEMEBBTHEL 16,922
Trade and other payables (excluding advanced 8 5 R E fh fE (I 318 (T E3E
receipts from customers and accrued TEWE P RIE R EETF)
expenses) 25,582
46,664
As at 31 March 2014 R-ZE—NF=A=+—H
Amounts due to directors e ZEEFIE 350
Borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) & (TEIERMEHEAR) 9,681
Obligation under finance leases BMEHEBETHEE 26,314
Trade and other payables (excluding advanced &5 & Hth e 518 ( T
receipts from customers and accrued T % P FRIE R ERT )
expenses) 26,578
62,923
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B O BERRME

15 Financial instruments by category — Group 15 E%EE'J%H’ WEMI A —-F&E

and company (Continued) P& NG| ()
The Company ¥ /N
Loans and
receivables
BREEWRRE
HK$'000
T
Assets BE
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZZE-—RF=A=+—H
Amount due from a subsidiary L NGRS 19,522
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries i EES NS B 72,519
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFMBEIAE 1,170
93,211
As at 31 March 2014 R-ZZE-—MFE=A=+—H
Other receivables (excluding prepayments) Hip ez IE(T’??HEH RIH) 1
Amount due from a subsidiary i b= PNGIE S 19,519
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JE Wt [R) 2 Bt B A R kIR 73,331
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkRe&EMEER 1,314
94,165

Other financial

liabilities at
amortised cost
BB R AT E
HNEMEREE
HK$'000
FET
Liabilities =L
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—AF=A=+—AH
Amounts due to directors e EE KB 350
As at 31 March 2014 RZZE—WMF=A=+—~H
Amounts due to directors BT EERIE 350
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B O BERRME

16

17

124

Inventories — Group

16

FE-X&H

2015 2014

—E2-afF —Z—mEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T

Raw materials R 2,587 2,257
Work-in-progress TR 322 563
Finished goods RUAY Th 320 303
Inventories FE 3,229 3,123

The cost of materials recognised as an expense and included
in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$106,784,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$112,220,000).

Trade receivables

Trade receivables B 5 IR

17

MERAERAERA LT A [HE K
Kl - HE-_ZFT—RF=ZA=+—A801
FZ 4106,784,00078 0 ( =T — U4
112,220,000 7¢) °

B 5 EWE

2,316 2,379

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values.

Payment terms granted to customers are mainly cash on delivery
and on credit. The average credit period ranges from 30 days to
60 days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on
invoice date is as follows:

ARBEERR/EHERWFANKREE
EENABERE -

MEFRENNTHREREZ RSB
MEE - FHEEHN T30BZ=60H -
REZAPESNE S ERIEREK D
Hrans

1 - 30 days 1£230H 1,980 2,072
31 - 60 days 31&260H 251 150
Over 60 days HiEB60H 85 157

2,316 2,379
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BB ERRN T
17 Trade receivables (continued 17 ESERRE )
As at 31 March 2015, trade receivables of HK$763,000 (2014: R—_ZE—HRF=ZA=+—H BE5E
HK$899,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to e X I8 763,0008 0 ( — & — O £F -
certain customers with no recent history of default. Based on 899,000/ 7t ) B % HA{E AR B o bt
historic low default rate, the Group believes that no impairment W EERCHENE TEEPER - ER
provision is necessary. The past due ageing analysis of these BEEZEFHARAR  ANEEBEEE
receivables is as follows: TR ER M o %<5 BUGRIR B8 IRk
BT
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&xT T
1 - 30 days 1£30H 641 733
31 - 60 days 31260H 43 58
Over 60 days @60 H 79 108
763 899
As at 31 March 2015, trade receivables of HK$28,000 (2014: R-ZZE—RF=A=+—H - 28,000
HK$11,000) were considered to be impaired and have been fully BTHNESERRBE(ZZE—HF :
provided for. These trade receivables were past due for over 90 11,0007 7T ) # 4R /3 08 (B I 2R o
days. ZEE FEYGIEE HEA0A -
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables B S RUGRIBREREBNES T ¢

are as follows:

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—E

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

At beginning of year REA - -
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 IR IE R BB

receivables (Note 7) (B5E7) 28 11

Written off as uncollectable [=E € SRR e (28) (11)

At end of year RER - -
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B O BERRME

17

18

126

Trade receivables — Group (continued)

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposures of the Group to credit risk are the
carrying value of trade receivables mentioned above.

All trade receivables of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security for trade
receivables.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
- Group and Company

17

18

ESEWRE -XRER )

FE M SR IR (B B M RO BR R BR 2 AT A
AOHRA KRR NRTTER X - BUERR
KBRS —RERA TR EEI RS

AEEAZNRAREERR LB E
ZRMFR FRHEE -

AEEMAE S RUKBEH AL T
-

AREEY E L E 5 YRR A ERE
Ham o

BE  BEUREAREMERK
H-AEERALQF

The Group KEE
2015 2014
—E—hF —E—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Other receivables H i FE Y RIE 723 567
Deposits and prepayments (Note) & RIS IAE (M) 5,800 5,063
6,523 5,630
Less: non-current portion B FEmENER

Deposits and prepayments e RIBRFIE (1.865) (3,164)

Deposits, prepayments and other e FENFIE K EA
receivables — current portion JE WK IR — B 38D 4,658 2,466
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B O BERRME

18 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 18

— Group and Company (continued)
The Group (Continued)

Note:

Amount mainly represents rental deposits, deposits for purchase of plant and
machinery, prepayments for utility and advertising expenses.

Other receivables were neither past due nor impaired and they were interest-free
and repayable on demand as at 31 March 2014 and 2015.
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of other

receivables and prepayments approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Company

Prepayments and other receivables T A< FRIE B HAh & R IE

e ANREREMERR
H-AEBRADT =)

AEE#)
MisE :

ZeHMETBERERS BERERBRNED
RARBEANKBARESFHX

R-E-—MER—_FT-—RFE=[A=1—0  HM@E
WY R E B TR ARRE - B A% B B B ki{E

& o

AAREERR - HEUFIERRNFIENEREER
BEEEAAEEES

AEEWZRE  RNFORREMMERIANREE
TE2UBTTAHE -

NN

2015
—E-EF

2014
—E—OF
HK$'000
FHBT

HK$’000
FTERT

(Note) (F3E) 347 213
Less: non-current portion B FEmENERD
Prepayments SELECE (120) (126)
Prepayments and other receivables T FRIR K H A W kIR

— current portion — B E G5 227 87

The carrying amounts of the Company’s prepayments and other
receivables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Note:

Amount represents prepayment for insurance premium.

AR B RO TR SRR B H A FE UL SR IR O R
E{EHABTTEHE -

GEX

RERRRENFENFR -

19 Bank deposit - Group 19 RTER-—FEH
As at 31 March 2014, the effective interest rate of bank deposit RZE—WNE=A=+—H ' RITEX
was 2.50% per annum. This deposit had a maturity period of BHEFNEE250%  FREHHAS3
over 3 months and was denominated in RMB. EAE - AAREESHE o
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B O BERRME

20 Cash and cash equivalents - Group and 20 ReRRSEEIER —KEH

Company RAAF
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following HeRBRESEEBERUTHEEE :
currencies:
The Group KEE
2015 2014
—E—hF —E—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Cash on hand FEE®
Denominated in HK$ LB TTETE 202 154
Denominated in RMB AARBEHE 131 157
333 311
Cash at banks R1TIR &
Denominated in HK$ LB TTETE 34,497 37,596
Denominated in RMB IAREE 96 1,507
34,593 39,103
Bank deposits RITEK
Denominated in HK$ LB TRt E 20,021 34,000
Denominated in RMB AAREE 63,261 42,547
83,282 76,547
118,208 115,961

=,
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B O BERRME

20 Cash and cash equivalents - Group and 20 ReRRLSEEIER —KEH

Company (continued) RARDT )
The Company ¥/ |
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —ZT—MmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Cash at bank RITEHRE
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 1,170 1,314
Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITHESBETHRITFRAERZD
deposits rate. F = BRELFI S -
Conversion of bank and cash balances denominated in RMB BAARBFEZRITRBCEH LT
into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of AN 7B 52 0 B IR A8 47 O SN B Il 28
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC Government. B R A8 51 B ] o
21 Pledge of assets — Group 21 EEER —XKH
The Group had the following pledge of assets as collaterals to AEBEEATEERCZIERERD - K
secure the Group'’s obligations under finance leases (Note 27): ERASEREMREE T ET(HE
27) :
2015 2014
—E-—FEF —E—peF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
At net book amount: AR FE -
Plant and machinery under finance REHEE THME Rikas
leases (Note 14) (Pf5E14) 40,711 44,122

I
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B O BERRME

22 Share capital and share premium 22 BARRMGRE

Nominal
value of
Number of ordinary Share

shares shares premium Total
RABE ETEREE B 47 5B Bt
(thousands) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
(FR) TET THET TR

Authorised capital - ordinary shares of EEBA—N-F-—=F=F

HK$0.01 each at 31 March 2013, =t-H —E-—MmF
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 mA—HE-ZE—81%
=ZA=t-HEREEA
0.0 TR LB 10,000,000 100,000 - 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERIRAR
As at 1 April 2013 RZE—=¥MA—H 100 1 - 1
Issue of new shares pursuant to BEEREEEITH
the global offering (Note a) R (MiEa) 125,000 1,250 96,250 97,500
Capitalisation of shares (Note b) BAERS (i zEb) 374,900 3,749 (3,749) =
Professional expenses incurred in AAR EAEER
connection with the Company's EXRZ (M)
Listing (Note a) - - (12,144) (12,144)
At 31 March 2014, 1 April 2014 and RZE-—EE=A=1+—H"
31 March 2015 “E-MEMA-BR
—“Z-H%=R=+—-H 500,000 5,000 80,357 85,357

Notes: Bt sE -

(a) On 3 December 2013, the Company issued 125,000,000 new shares with (a) R-_ZT—=F+=-_F=H ' ARAIHESEN
nominal value of HK$0.01 each for the placing at the offer price of HK$0.78 FR%0.787% T Y %% & B %17 125,000,000 A%
each. The share issuance cost relating to the new shares amounted to BAREE0.01BTTAVFTAR (D o EITARD A RE
HK$29,770,000, of which HK$17,626,000 (Note 7) is recognised in the B % 15 B 1T A AN 529,770,000 7+ H A
statement of comprehensive income and HK$12,144,000 is credited to 17,626,0007%8 7T (M 57 ) A fR & Wi 2 R TERR
share premium account of the Company. 1.12,144,0007% 7T &t A2 2 R AR 17 )i {8 AR

H o

(b) On 3 December 2013, the Company capitalised HK$3,749,000 by crediting (b) R-ZZE—=%+-A=8 " ARAFBALARQ
the share premium account of the Company and applied such sum to pay A AR 17 )4 B BR 7P 4 AR 883,749,000 %8 T T
up in full at par a total of 374,900,000 shares for allotment and issue to the RER - WIREAEZEBERE R 2R
then shareholders in proportion to their respectively shareholdings. RIZEXBZHREAIRERBETHE K

374,900,0000% %15 °

=,
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B O BERRME

23 Share-based payments - Group and
Company

Share options are granted to the directors and senior
management of the Company on 13 November 2013 (the “Date
of Grant”). The exercise price of the granted options is HK$0.78.
The options granted to the grantees under the share option
scheme shall be exercisable in accordance with the time as
indicated below:

(i) On 1 April 2014, options in respect of 50% of the total
number of shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of
the options granted to the grantees under the share option
scheme shall become exercisable;

(i) On the second anniversary date of the Listing date (i.e. 3
December 2015), options in respect of 50% of the total
number of shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of
the option granted to the grantees under the share option
scheme shall become exercisable;

(iii)  All the options granted to the grantees under the share
option scheme that are not exercised by them prior to the
sixth anniversary date (i.e. 3 December 2019) of the Listing
date shall lapse and be deemed as cancelled and void.

(iv) The share options of the share-based payment were
cancelled on 9 May 2014 pursuant to a resolution passed
by the Board.

23 BREFAX-AEERELQF

R-F—=F+—A+=B(&RHAH
) ArrEEkRREEEEER
FERHE - R ZBHEZ/TEER0.TS
BT o IREBEBIRAEFTEIRARAR K Z
B IRE T X PR B AR 1T
&£

(i) R-T-—MFEA—B - AREE
PR R B[R AR AR 2 B AR i TE
TTEEM A T 31T B 2850% K
BREAS R R RITTE

(i) RETEHRMBI-_Z-—RF+-A
ZR)E-BF  FAiREBRE
B AAR AR LB IREETEM
1 T 21T R D 4 B50% ) B Ak 1
R AR RITTIE

(i) RBEBREAIFAARARLNE
HRAE B (R0 £ B 3SR /A & (R
“E-AF+ZA=ZBR)ZAER
R FITEE ) K RUALR ST H
SR -

(iv) BERERXZBEREER_F—N

FRAANAREBEAEESRBHN—
TR AL

2014/15F%  eprint EEER AT 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

23 Share-based payments — Group and 23 BERENX -XEERALD T

132

Com Pany (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

(%)

T RTTE 2 FE A RE 2 B Ko E B R hn e
BVITEE ST ¢

2015 2014
=F-1% N

Average Average

exercise exercise

price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option  (thousands)

BHRERE B1p ke
FIITEE BRE THTEE B
V- (F4) AIT (F17)
At 1 April REA—H 0.78 12,500 - -
Granted S qun - - 0.78 12,500
Cancelled 23T iH (0.78) (12,500) = =
At 31 March R=A=+—H - - 0.78 12,500

The fair value of options granted which was determined using
the Black-Scholes valuation model was HK$0.23 per option. The
significant inputs into the model was share price of HK$0.78 at
the Date of Grant, exercise price shown above, volatility of 47 %,
dividend yield of 3%, an expected option life of 4 years and an
annual risk-free interest rate of 0.74%. The volatility is assumed
based on the daily share price volatility of the comparable
companies for a historical observation period equal to the life of
the options.

All the options granted for the year ended 31 March 2014
were cancelled on 9 May 2014 pursuant to a resolution passed
by the Board. An expense of HK$1,168,000 was recognised
immediately in the current year that would otherwise has been
recognised over the remainder of the vesting period.

An expense of HK$1,696,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for share
options granted to directors and senior management of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2014.
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EEYHIFRERRFE0.74% ° K
BIERAILRARRIEERERES
MER BB RAN B B RERE M

R -

BEBE_T—MFE=-A=1+—BLLHF
EEeRENBRECREBEEFTSEBN
—EAZER _ZE-OFRAANBE
5 © 1,168,00078 TR FE R #8 T 57 /8 83
HERH X DN AFE AR R -
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B O BERRME

24 Other reserves — Group and Company 24 Hi@E—AEBERAQF

The Group AEE

Share-based
Capital compensation Other  Exchange Retained
reserve reserve Reserve reserve earnings Total

Exfife ROmERE  EnRE  SHERE  REEN air

HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TiEn TiEn TER TER TR TR

(Note a)
(MizEa)

At 1 April 2013 W-Z-=FMA—H 6,993 - - 37 62,690 69,720
Profit for the year ERGEFI - - - - 21,577 21,577
Currency translation differences  [E} =% - - - (182) - (182)
Share-based payments (Note 23)  BERR#ERE % (MizH23) - 1,696 - - - 1,696
Deemed contribution from equity FIEEZRAE AR

holders upon Reorganisation EAREE (400) - - - - (400)
Dividends (Note 29) R (Mz29) - - - - (14,999) (14,999)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=FA=1—H 6,593 1,696 - (145) 69,268 77,412
At 1 April 2014 “Z-MENA—A 6,593 1,696 - (145) 69,268 77,412
Profit for the year EREFI - - - - 32,335 32,335
Currency translation differences  [E} =% - - - (59) - (59)
Share-based payments (Note 23) B RIEES =t (Ffiz423) - 1,168 - - = 1,168
Reallocation of share based ERER T RER TR

payment reserve to retained BNARERARM

earnings upon cancellation - (2,864) - - 2,864 -
Acquisition of additional interest  HfE—FEIf B A F&E4h

in a subsidiary % = = (21) = = (21)
Dividends (Note 29) k& (Fri29) = = = = (34,650) (34,650)
At 31 March 2015 R-E-RF=A=1+—H 6,593 - 21 (741) 69,817 75,648
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B O BERRME

24 Other reserves — Group and Company (continved) 24 HAfEE — NEBRAAQ T e

The Company VNN

(Accumulated

Share-based losses)/
Capital compensation retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
(RitEE)/
EXfEE ROFERBE REEA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT TET
(Note b)
(FftzEb)
At 1 April 2013 R-Z—=FIA—H = = (1,321) (1,321)
Profit for the year FREM = - 15,996 15,996
Contribution surplus HARB 73,508 = = 73,508
Share-based payments FERERS
(Note 23) (Ft5E23) - 1,696 - 1,696
Dividends (Note 29) B2 (FiE29) = = (8,000) (8,000)
At 31 March 2014 “E—NFE=F=1—H 73,508 1,696 6,675 81,879
At 1 April 2014 R-E—NEMA—H 73,508 1,696 6,675 81,879
Profit for the year F R A - - 33,347 33,347
Share-based payments BT
(Note 23) (FtzE23) - 1,168 - 1,168

Reallocation of share based ~ BERIER X HH
payment reserve to retained ~ RIFHEEHDE

earnings upon cancellation ZERBEH - (2,864) 2,864 =
Dividends (Note 29) f 8 (F7E29) - - (34,650) (34,650
At 31 March 2015 R_Z—h%
=A=1+—8H 73,508 - 8,236 81,744
Notes: BteE
(@)  Capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate values of share (@) AEENEARFEEEAKNEENSETHE
capital and share premium of certain subsidiaries comprising the Group. RABRAERD mEBHEEBE KT
In June 2013, the Company paid a consideration of HK$400,000 to the —=F XA EAREEN—ZHD ' ARFA
then shareholders for transfer of equity interests in certain subsidiaries B2 IR 1400,0008 TTHRE - 1EA
as part of the Reorganisation. Such payment of such consideration in HEETHEATMKE - ZUREFAL
cash was accounted for as the Group's deemed distributions to the then NEOEBREEARARNEEGIERAER 2
shareholders. AR DR ©
(b)  Capital reserve of the Company represents the excess of the aggregate net (b) ARREABEBEALTWENBARNE
assets values of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the nominal EFE AR FRRE A S B AR 1% = 48 M ot BB K
consideration payable by the Group for the acquisition of subsidiaries BRBIFEMNORBXRERORE -

pursuant to the Reorganisation.

=,
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B O BERRME

25 Trade payables, accruals and other payables 25 BSE{XIE - ExtRERE
— Group and Company A RE - RNEERAAF
The Group KEE

2015
—E—hF —ET—OF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
_Tradepayables o EEEARE . Bng2iay 24920
Accruals and other payables FERTRRIA Fo Hh FE < 58
Accrued expenses (Note a) FERTRA S (Mf5Ea) 13,214 11,440

TR P kA (K atb)

Advanced receipts from customers

(Note b) 4,800 3,186
Other payables (Note c) H At FE AT 5RIE (BT %) 1,308 1,658
19,322 16,284

Trade payables, accruals and B S EFRIE F’EW‘ RIA K
other payables E th J& < 51T 43,596 41,204

Notes:

et T REESRMAS REMBEAE
RS HRE -

Accrued expenses are mainly relating to employee benefits expense and
other office expenses.

Advanced receipts from customers represent payments received from TR = PR IAE TR IR P ENRI AR IS 2 5k
customers for printing services.

HbENRAE REHE R DA AR

(c) Other payables are mainly relating to selling and distribution expenses.

(o)

HEFRENNZRIEREEAEE
EHNF308E908 -

-~
o1=
=

Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly on credit. The
credit period ranges from 30 to 90 days.
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B O BERRME

25 Trade payables, accruals and other payables 25 B SE{IMIE - Bt HERHE
— Group and Company (continued) fHEMRIE-AXEERAEAAT
(#&)
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date REZAHESNE FENKIBRE D
is as follows: Mrany
2015 2014
—E-1F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
1 - 30 days 1£230H 9,955 9,043
31 - 60 days 31£260H 4,198 4,467
61 — 90 days 61290H 5,391 5,732
Over 90 days HRiB90H 4,730 5,678
24,274 24,920
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, accruals AEEMNE ZENHIE - Bt RIBBRE
and other payables are mainly denominated in Hong Kong fhFE RIE R BREE F 2 LB TTEHE ©
dollars.
The Company ARTF
2015
—E-HEF
HK$°000
FHET
Accruals st 462 470
The carrying amounts of the Company’s accruals are RABE B FIBNREES BT
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. (E
The carrying amounts of trade payables, accruals and other B P ENRIA - BT FRIA R H A &R
payables approximate their fair values. EWREEREFSE 2 AR EBEES °

=,
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B O BERRME

26 Borrowings — Group

26 fEE-—FXKHE

2015 2014

—2-1f% —FT—MF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FET

Trust receipt loans =ERIEE R 3,810 9,681
Note: BiaE

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand clause.
The carrying amounts of trust receipt loans are repayable within one year and
denominated in Hong Kong dollars as at 31 March 2014 and 2015.

The weighted average effective interest rates (per annum) were
as follows:

Trust receipt loans

ZeBIRR Rt A TR R 5K B MRt - 2
EAACAREREEGRIFZE - R_F—HF
E—ZE-—RAF=A=+—HEEKREBEERNREE
AR —FAEEBYAETTAHE °

IEFHER(F)MERLMT

2015 2014
—E—FE

L
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx BT

2.36% 5.00%

The fair values of the borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts as at 31 March 2014 and 2015 as all the borrowings
carry interests which are benchmarked against Hong Kong Dollar
prime rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR"),
where relevant.

As at 31 March 2014, the borrowings of the Group were secured
by personal and corporate guarantee provided by related
parties of the Group (Note 34(c)). During the year, all personal
guarantees provided by the directors of the Company have been
released and replaced by corporate guarantee of the Company.

R-F-—OER_F-—AF=A=1—
B BENAABEEEKEERS -
RRARMEEEDZSRBRETRESREE
MEEBBRITRARFER(THEBIRIT
RZHFEX]) (MBRE)ETE -

RZZE-—WE=RA=+—H £AEEH
&5 T3 LA B AN 5% B 9 B HE U 4R RO fELA
R ArmERME3MOIERER - A
HARAESFRENBEARRDRER
FRER Y A AN DB R RERKE -
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B O BERRME

27 Obligations under finance leases — Group 27 BMEHEETEE -—FAKE

Certain plant and machinery of the Group were held under AREBETHELRERUBER SIS
finance leases. No arrangements have been entered into for B o REBBESERSABSTR
contingent rental payments. The Group’s obligations under B c AEBERMEHEEB NN EEER
finance leases were repayable as follows: T 5| HARSEE

Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments

REHEESARK REHEESARAE

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —T—@WmFE ZEB-HF —T—MOF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT FTER FAT

Amounts payable under ~ BIETHEEIE TH

finance leases: FEIRIE -
Within one year —F R 10,010 10,114 9,600 9,392
Later than one year but ~ —&F& B8
not more than five years  F4F 7,469 17,479 7,322 16,922
17,479 27,593 16,922 26,314
Less: Future finance W RREEER
charges (557) (1,279) - -
Present value of lease MEBENIRE
obligations 16,922 26,314 16,922 26,314
Less: Amount due within & : BV & EFT R
twelve months T=EARE
shown under HR 2 kI8
current liabilities (9,953) (11,620)
Amount due after twelve R+ —1{# 5 % ZI| 58
months Z A 6,969 14,694
Wholly repayable within ~ RERXNZ2EEE
5 years 16,922 26,314
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the AEE MEMEBETEEHREEA
lessor’s charge over the leased assets with net carrying amount HHEEECHIEER  HEEH
of HK$40,711,000 (2014: HK$44,122,000). 2 540,711,000 L (=& — IO F :

44,122,000 7T) °
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B O BERRME

27 Obligations under finance leases - Group 27 REHEEE ST -4+ 5£H

(Continued) (%)
The weighted average effective interest rates (per annum) were IEFHER(F)FZNR :
as follows:

2015 2014
—E—hF —ET—OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Obligations under finance leases MEHEBETMET 3.28% 3.28%
28 Deferred income tax liabilities - Group 28 EEFIEHAE —FKE
The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: RIEFSHE BTN :

2015 2014
—E-1F —F-lF

HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT

Deferred income tax liabilities to be BB+ — (A A % Uk B Hy IR IE

recovered after more than St atE

12 months (11,550) (10,496)
Deferred income tax liabilities to be P+ & B AUk e &Y IR

recovered within 12 months St atE (622) -
Deferred income tax liabilities ELFAEHAanE (12,172) (10,496)

I
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B O BERRME

28 Deferred income tax liabilities — Group continiesy 28 BELEFFEHREE —AEE )

The gross movement on the deferred income tax liabilities is as RIEFTIST A B AZE T -
follows:

2015 2014
—E—hF —E—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THIT
At beginning of year REH) (10,496) (9,380)
Charged to the consolidated statement & 4R A Wk
of comprehensive income (Note 12) HIBR (MEE12) (1,676) (1,116)
At end of year REFLK (12,172) (10,496)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for R EHEERBBERFAN(ER—
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of BRRANZ S NEE T -

balances with the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Accelerated tax depreciation

IEEBEITE

2015 AONR:!

—E-HEF —E—mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFFEHEE FHExT T

At beginning of year REA] (11,973) (10,913)
Recognised in the consolidated REfHEE KR PR

statement of comprehensive income (654) (1,060)

At end of year RELR (12,627) (11,973)

Tax losses
HIEEE

2015 2014

—E-RF —E-ImF

HK$°000 HK$'000

Deferred income tax assets ELEFTEHRERE T T FET

At beginning of year REF 1,477 1,533
Charged to the consolidated statement & GH4R 4 Wzt 3k P HIBR

of comprehensive income (1,022) (56)

At end of year REFLL 455 1,477
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B O BERRME

28 Deferred income tax liabilities — Group (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
losses through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did
not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$535,000 (2014:
HK$575,000) in respect of losses amounting to HK$3,162,000
(2014: HK$3,484,000). These unrecognised tax losses can be
carried forward to offset against future assessable profits and
have no expiry date.

29 Dividends

The dividends paid in 2015 and 2014 were HK$34,650,000
and HK$14,999,000 (Note a and b) respectively. A dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 of HK3.53 cents per
share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$17,650,000, is to be
proposed by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2015 and to be
approved by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend
payable.

Interim dividend paid of HK2.93 cents
(2014 First — HK$2,425 (Note a)
and second — HK$80 (Note b)) per

28

29

EEMESHEE - XE8 o

BB HREETAERBREBEEES
T2 335 3B R 2R R FR A o ) 2 3R 1 kBT 4
8 MIBEEELER o NS B &R
RERE 3,162,000 T ( —ZFE — Y4 .
3,484,000/ 70 ) B ERIEEFI S B E
£535,0008 70 (—Z — M4 : 575,000
BIL) c ZERERTRIBARE A 48 UL
88 R 2R 8 e Bt v A1) B g m B AR o

iz B

RIE—RFER _T—NERTZRE
2 Bl A 34,650,000 7 JT & 14,999,000
BL(MsEakb) - EEEBEN T —Hh
FRA+TNLBEZERNEHE=_ZT—AF
—A=+—BLEFEFR33IBN 2
B HEA& 817,650,000 7T W 1EFAR
RENGRITZREBFERS EHE -
ZEV B HRRLERMZEMIE -

2015
—E—REF

2014
—E—O4F
HK$'000
FHBT

HK$’000
FTERT

BT ERR B B ERAR2. 935
—E—JO4E . £—K—2,425
BT (MisEa) M5 — X —80/8 7T

ordinary share (FtzEDb)) 14,650 14,999
Proposed final dividend of HK3.53 BN IR S TR EER3.53(L
cents (2014: HK4 cents) per — TP D 4580)
ordinary share 17,650 20,000
32,300 34,999

Notes:

In preparation for the Listing, the Company and other companies now comprising
the Group have undergone a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) pursuant to
which the Company has become the holding company of the Group.

(@ Before the Reorganisation, the Board of Directors of Promise Network
Printing Limited declared and paid an interim dividend of HK$2,425 per
ordinary share to its then shareholders totaling HK$6,998,550 during the
year ended 31 March 2014.

(b) Before the Reorganisation, the Board of Directors of the Company declared
and paid an interim dividend of HK$80 per ordinary share, totaling
HK$8,000,000 to its then shareholders during the year ended 31 March
2014.

BifeE

REFHLED  ARRARRARAEEZ EMRARE
ETEA(TEA]D  BUARFEKRAAEE 2

NG

(@) REMEA RERPLDORERARESS
REBEE-_T-—NF=A=1+—BLEFERH
ERARRS IR &R RS EREER
2,425 7T + #£516,998,55074 7T ©

(b) REMR  ARFEFERHE_FT—HF
A=+t —HLEFEREERMNBRREIR
FOR A R AR B A E B A8 T HAt
8,000,000/ 7T ©
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B ERER T
30 Cash generated from operations 30 KEFBRE
2015 pAONK:!
=i —ZT-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Profit before income tax & FT 1S 5 B4 A 38,460 27,933
Adjustments for: TLA T B IEEITRAE ¢
Depreciation e 14 12,016 11,269
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEY% - BE K
equipment RiEBEE R 6 1,208 413
Share of profits of joint ventures EhE &R 11 (109) (1,776)
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 NGB RE RS
receivables 17 28 11
Recovery of trade receivables previously Y34t i £ &9
written off B 5 fE W 5RIE 7 (30) =
Finance income A WA 9 (2,449) (1,147)
Finance costs BB AR 9 790 1,894
Professional expenses incurred in RNF ETHATE£R
connection with the Company’s HEERY
Listing 7 - 17,626
Share-based payments granted to RTYTEZENEEHN
directors and employees BRI 23 1,168 1,696
Changes in working capital: BEESEE
— Inventories -FE (106) 613
— Trade receivables - B S RWGRIA 65 (587)
— Other receivables and — E e 5k IE K TR
prepayments KIH (777) 62
— Trade payables - B 5 ERNFRIA (646) 389
— Amounts due from joint ventures - WA B FEFIA (1,814) =
— Accruals and other payables — JERTSRIE R B M FE S
IR 3,038 1,810
— Amounts due to directors - EESHIE = 350
Cash generated from operations KEMFIRE 50,842 60,556
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from ReEHBEESRERT  LEYE  BE
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: RFEH TS RIERLE -

Net book amount (Note 14) REDFE(HE14) 1,542 415
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BEMREEE

and equipment (Note 6) (MF3E6) (1,208) (413)
Proceeds from disposal & FT 18 308 334 2
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B O BERRME

31 Contingencies 31 RAREH
Other than those financial guarantee contracts as disclosed BRBIEE34(d) T B RZ ST IS IERE 4
in Note 34(d), the Group and the Company did not have any 2 R NS T S /NI NI T o ] Bl N A
material significant contingent liabilities. afE -
32 Commitments 32 AIE
(a) Capital commitment - Group and Company (a) BEAXARE-AEERAQT
Capital expenditure of an investment authorised by the HEFSEERENRITNEARRH
board of directors which has not been contracted for as YR -_E—RHFE=ZA=+—HH
of 31 March 2015 amounts to HK$9,375,000 (2014: Nil). © % 749,375,0008 L (ZF — I
(Note i) F 1 F) o (M)
Note: BREE
(i) On 30 March 2015, the Company entered into a framework (i) —T-RE=A=1+H A AH
agreement with Shantou Dongfeng Printing Company Limited S\ 58 5 R ED Rl AR 19 A PR A R) ([l 8
("Shantou Dongfeng”), a shareholder of the Company, for the RE | KRR ZMKE)TLIEZRW
formation of a project company for the internet design and o EPBEKVEEARREEA
printing business in the PRC. The Company and Shantou Dongfeng E#ETRETREREL - AAR K
would invest a total investment of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to WEERRERIEE ARAEREARE
approximately HK$31,250,000) in the project company and their 25,000,000t (214 431,250,000 %
equity interests in the project company would be 30% and 70% T REERBE AR Z#E=D R A
respectively. 30% £ 70% °
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year FREFTHNERNREENEARFTZ
but not yet incurred is as follows: P N
2015
—E-hF
HK$'000
FET
Investment in a joint venture R—EAENEIRE
(Note 35) (PfFEE35) 1,100 —
Property, plant and equipment M BB N ERE 455 855
1,555 855
As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Company did not have RZE—AGER-ZZFT—NF=H=+—
any significant capital commitments which are contracted H ' ARRWESEAETAEMKRESE
for but not yet incurred. B & R IE o
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& Ot R Mo
32 Commitments (continved) 32 AT
(b) Operating lease commitments - Group (b) KEHERE-—FAEE
The Group leases various stores and premises under non- AREBIRE T A HEAE EHE R
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms A ZEPI T REEAT o FHEN T —
are between 1 to 5 years. The future aggregate minimum ERHF o RREMNKEHES LN
lease payments are as follows: T
2015 2014
—E2—-afF —ZmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHTT
Not later than 1 year —EFE AR 15,554 14,499
Later than 1 year and not later —FLAE - AFUT
than 5 years 6,391 13,358
21,945 27,857
The Group leases machinery, office equipment and AREFRBINAHEESSHE RS
billboard under non-cancellable operating lease AFAMEE HAETRERESE -
agreements. The lease terms are between 1 to 5 years. The HENT—Z=RF - AREMNRE
future aggregate minimum lease payments are as follows: He@zam R -

Not later than 1 year —F LR 339 349
Later than 1 year and not later —FPAE - BERT
than 5 years 279 610
618 959
As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Company did not have RZE—RFEK_ZT—NEFE=HA
any significant commitments under operating leases. =+—H ARAELEHETE
N SRR o
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B O BERRME

33 Transactions with non-controlling interests

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

On 29 September 2014, the Group acquired an additional
30% of the issued shares of Invoice Limited (“Invoice”) for
a purchase consideration of HK$2,000,000. Acquisition-
related cost of HK$31,000 was paid. The carrying amount
of the non-controlling interests in Invoice on the date of
acquisition was HK$2,010,000. The Group recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$2,010,000
and a decrease in equity attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$21,000. Upon completion of the
acquisition, Invoice becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group. The effect of changes in the ownership
interest of Invoice on the equity attributable to owners
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2015 is
summarised as follows:

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests
acquired

Consideration paid to non-controlling interests

Acquisition-related cost paid

33 FEREZERS

(a)

IR R 2R E
ST UREEARRA AR

Wi — B A Rz OME R

R-ZZE—MFEALA-+IE  KE
E YRR ERREIRI AR A 5 ([ ZERHED
il 1) ZEIN30% B BT (D © BB E
{8 52,000,000 7T © Bk
BEFR AR 231,000 7T ° B A ED
il 9 FE 122 A% hE 2 A U B A B 2 BRTE
{E42,010,000/87C - NEBE R
R 2>2,010,00058 T IE 22 AR AE 25
Ko 21,0008 T AR RHEA A
FEfHERS - e MREEE AL - B
BRI AAEE 2 EHNB AR o
HE—ZT-—AF=A=1+—RHItF
& - ERRERIF A AESEZEIE
AARIEEABEESZZEN
T :

HK$'000

TAET

Yo SR 1R o5 2 RN (E

2,010
(2,000)
31

Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity REZRIERZ IR EBLH =%

21)

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss
of control

On 5 February 2015, the Group disposed of 49% of
interest in Digital Printing Centre Limited (“Digital
Printing”) at a consideration of HK$4,900, which is also
the carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in
Digital Printing on the date of disposal. Therefore, no gain
or loss was recognised within equity for the changes in
the ownership interest of Digital Printing on the equity
attributable to owners of the company during the year
ended 31 March 2015.

There was no transaction with non-controlling interests
during the year ended 31 March 2014.

(b)

2014/154F 5§

HEMBAREEM TR AE
i

“ZE-RF_AREA - AEEMU
B 4,900/ 7T i & 885 EN Rl = /0y
BERRAF(TEEENR 1)49% 2 #
g7 WAL EBESEIRI FE R S
EHZEEE - At #E-F
—hAF=A=1+—HLLFE - &5
Rl NERE B ERN R B
B AR EHED 2 AT BRI

BE—_ZE-—NE=A=1+—HI&E
E o EIEE RS S o
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BT RBERRM T

33 Transactions with non-controlling interests 33 FERERTH =)

(Continued)

(c) Effects of transactions with non-controlling (c) BE=E—HFE=HA=+—H
LFEFEREGXZIHED

interests on the equity attributable to owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 RAEEAELES 2 TE

HK$'000
TAT

Changes in equity attributable to owners of the RRAREB AEGERE 2
Company arising from: BEELY
— Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary — — Ygi& — R E A & 2 2o (21)
— Disposal of interests in a subsidiary without - HENB AR mAEL

loss of control e il -

FEBRER R HEARE

Net effect for transactions with non-controlling
HEARLERZEFRE

interests on equity attributable to owners of the
Company
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B O BERRME

34 BEFRS

34 Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise control or significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be individuals
(being members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other entities
and include entities which are under the significant influence of
related parties of the Group where those parties are individuals.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
individuals and companies were related parties that had
transactions or balances with the Group:

WA= A ERAEMEREFELTBERE
BRRBEPHAKETEEFIREXE
FEN ARZTREASEERE
RZIA - REDAIBEAIEEE
BEAE FERRR/HERSHER
REXB)REMER  BEXHAE
ANAEEBETEAZENER - X
HEEHINE T RRERARE

AABEERE  TIHNBAARRRRE
BEAREEEITR PN IFIE A R &
VAl

Name of related party

BELER

Mr. She Siu Kee William
NEAELE

Mr. Tsui Pak Wai
RiERE

Mr. Fung Hong Keung
ISERSR ST

Mr. Leung Wai Ming
RERSLE

Mr. Leung Yat Pang
R—lEkE

Mr. Lam Shing Kai
U VESES e

Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki
HEHEEE

Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen
B S A

Relationship with the Group
BEAS @R

Executive director of the Company

ARANMITES

Executive director of the Company

ARANMITES

Executive director of the Company

ARANMITES

Non-executive director of the Company

ARAMFATES

Non-executive director of the Company

ARARNFATES

Non-executive director of the Company

ARARNFATES

Non-executive director of the Company

ARARNFATES

Independent non-executive director of the Company

ARRNVBILIFAITES

2014/154%E% eprint EEAR AT

147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

34 Related party transactions (continued)

148

Name of related party

RELEH

Mr. Chan Chi Yu
PR A

Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah
BEEERLT

Ms. Luk Mei Yan
PEX B it

Mr. Yip Chi Man
ETRAE

Mr. Wong Tsz Hin

BETEHEITE

E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd.

e-banner Limited

E-Print Bannershop Limited

E-Print Bannershop

CTP Limited

Promise Properties Limited

ReERMEERAF

34 BEAIRS #

Relationship with the Group
BRAREEHER

Independent non-executive director of the Company

ARRNBILIFATES

Independent non-executive director of the Company

ARRNBIIFATES

Independent non-executive director of the Company

ARRNBILIFATES

Former non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group (Note 1)

7R S (B Y B 2 B Y A SR R AR (BT RE )

Non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group

Z e NGB

Joint venture of a subsidiary of the Group

AEEHRBRARNEERE

Joint venture of a subsidiary of the Group

AEEHRBRARNEERE

Joint venture of a subsidiary of the Group (Note 2)

AEBEHRBRARNESRE(ME2)

Jointly controlled by a party among the Controlling Shareholders and a
third party
P AR AR SR e — B 58 = 75 LR

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

B A T AR AR SR

Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

B A T AR AR SR
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B O BERRME

34 Related party transactions (continued) 3 BERXZ @
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
BEREB BARKE R FR
Profit More Rich Limited Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders
BEZARAF A T 15 AR AR ER 2
VVV Limited Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

H A T 1 AR AR SR A

King Profit International Limited Controlled by certain parties among the Controlling Shareholders

ZHEBRBR QA A T 15 AR AR ER 2
eprint Limited Ultimate holding company (Note 3)

RPN A (MEE3)

Notes: BisE

1. Mr. Yip Chi Man transferred 30% interest in Invoice Limited to the Group 1. RZZE-—WFAAZTNE EFRELEHE
on 29 September 2014. Since then, he is no longer the holder of the non- RERERIBRARZ0%ES FTASE - It
controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Group. % BETABANEENERRZIEERER

FEA -

2. E-Print Bannershop Limited is a joint venture of eprint Bannershop Group 2. E-Print Bannershop Limited Zeprint Bannershop

Limited, which has been disposed of on 3 June 2014. Group Limitedz & &% - EER=F—N
FENA=ZBHE -

3. The Company is controlled by eprint Limited, which owns 58.5% of the 3. A A] A eprint Limited 2 %] e R =ZF —
Company’s shares as at 31 March 2014 and 30 September 2014, and is F=A=+—HBER=FT—MWFHLA=FH "
beneficially owned by the Controlling Shareholders. The directors consider eprint Limited # & ZX A &]58.5% & {7 3 A
eprint Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, being ZERIRRE RS - EFR Heprint Limited
the immediate and the ultimate holding company. (REBRERHFSHMK L AR REER

R AT

I
2014/15F%  eprint EEER AT 149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CXabt e
34 Related party transactions (continued) 3 BEARF =
(a) Transactions with related parties — Group and (a) EHEEINRE —XKEBERRK
Company: NI
The Group REE
The following transactions were undertaken by the Group ANEBEAES DETUATRS °

with related parties.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related RRAREERA  BEARSHNIE
party transactions were carried out in the normal course of BEBBRERERASERESEES
business and at terms negotiated between the Group and P TE U6k HETT ¢

the respective related parties:

2015 2014
—E-RF —T—F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Rental expense of plants and FER s BE MR BEBHRE &
machinery, premises and carpark ~ #22 « ¥ REHFHS
in Hong Kong payable or paid (i) S (i)

— CTP Limited — CTP Limited 4,482 4,425
— Profit More Rich Limited - REZERAA 517 492
— Promise Properties Limited — RAEEMEBRE AT 1,428 1,358
- VVV Limited - VVV Limited 2,098 2,000
- King Profit International Limited - ZF|BEE AR A 7 326 322

8,851 8,597

Rental expense of stores payable  FEff=k 2 NPT SR (i)

or paid (i)
— E-Print Bannershop Limited — E-Print Bannershop Limited 405 1,906
— E-Print Bannershop — E-Print Bannershop — 66
405 1,972
Rental income receivable or JE U 5k B W AR < WA (i)
received (i)
— e-banner Limited — e-banner Limited 275 -

=,
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CXatlbit e
34 Related party transactions (continued) 3 BERXZ @
(a) Transactions with related parties - Group and (a) EHEETHNXRS —XEERK
Company: (Continued) YNCIRNE )
The Group (Continued) REEE)

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—OF

HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TAT

I.T. license fee income receivable  EWEWEH R ERE

or received (i) W A ()

— E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. — E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 211 187

— e-banner Limited — e-banner Limited 751 -

962 187

Provision of finance lease of IRHEBEHREREE()

machinery (i)

— e-banner Limited — e-banner Limited 3,395 -
Interest income from finance lease JEU 2 Wt EFEE

receivable or received (i) 2 A ()

— e-banner Limited — e-banner Limited 84 -
Pre-press processing and FEUS S B WENRT AN T K&

customer service fee receivable ZERBEE)

or received (i)

— E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. — E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 543 839
Emolument payable or paid to (i)  FEfTsE R EM()

— Mr. Yip Chi Man -ErREE 366 562

— Mr. Wong Tsz Hin -EmTHESE 30 -

396 562

Revenue from sales of goods JE W sk B WU & & o Mz (i)

receivable or received (i)

— e-banner Limited — e-banner Limited 202 -
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BT RBERRM T
34 Related party transactions (continued) 3 BERXZ @
(a) Transactions with related parties - Group and (a) HBEINRS —XTEBERK
Company: (Continued) YNCINE )
The Group (Continued) REEE)

2015 2014
—E-1F —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT

Management fee income receivable FEUgakE U B IR & UL A ()
or received (i)

— CTP Limited — CTP Limited - 180

— Promise Properties Limited — RAEMEBRE AT - 45

- VVV Limited - VVV Limited - 45

— e-banner Limited — e-banner Limited 240 =

240 270

Subcontracting fee expense FERT Sk B A1 B A 52 i)

paid or payable (i)

— e-banner Limited — e-banner Limited 597 -
Consideration paid for the BT U SR AR i o

acquisition of non-controlling Z RAB()

interests (i)

— Mr. Yip Chi Man -ETRRE 2,000 -
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BT BERRM
34 Related party transactions (continued) 3 BERXZ @
(a) Transactions with related parties - Group and (a) HBEINRS —XTEBERK
Company: (Continued) NE ()
The Company PN

2015 2014
—E—hF —ET—OF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TAT

Management fee income receivable & U sk 2 U & 58 & U A ()
or received (i)

— Promise Properties Limited — (RGEEYERE AT 5,902 8,182
— Invoice Limited - ERRHIRIERA A 405 387
— Design Easy Limited - Rt H(BB)ERRAA] 20 21

6,327 8,590

Dividend income receivable or & U sk B AR B A

received
— Promise Network Holding — Promise Network Holding
Limited Limited 34,653 28,951
— eprint Digital Holding Limited — eprint Digital Holding Limited 384 -
35,037 28,951
Notes: Bt 5
(i) These transactions are carried out on terms agreed with the counter- (i) ZERSGTIREARZH AN B EFER
parties in the ordinary course of business. BRI TE R ETOETT ©
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEEASHMH
Details of the key management compensation are disclosed FEERABTM ABRENRE
in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. BEOA TSR 7ES o

I
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& Ot R Mo
34 Related party transactions (continued) 3 BEARRZ @
() Guarantees/securities provided by related () BAEFFRMER EH X
parties — Group: 8 :
Guarantees/securities provided by certain related parties ETEERMEE(HE26) Fri
for borrowings (Note 26) were as follows: HAER IR
2015 AN
—E—hF —E—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Joint guarantees provided by ETESRE 2 EKRER
certain parties among the
directors - 65,000
(d) Financial guarantee contracts — Group: (d) BBEREN-—FEE:
The Company and Promise Network Printing Limited, a NN A R AR _EENRIA R A A
subsidiary of the Group, and certain parties among the (AEE—ENBRR)RETES
directors have jointly provided guarantees to secure the AEFATEEARNER - &R
loans of the following related companies. IRAHELR -
The loan balances of related companies were as follows: FAENBERERAT
2015 2014
—E—fF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
CTP Limited CTP Limited = 5,351
e-banner Limited e-banner Limited 6,555 =
6,555 5,351
Under the terms of the financial guarantee contracts, the RIRITEERE QRMER - BIRA
guarantors will make payments to reimburse the lenders RN ZERERARE IR
upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make payments e R R AT o
when due.

=,
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& Ot B ot
34 Related party transactions (continued) 3 BELXRZ =)
(e) Balances with related parties - Group and (e) HBEEFEH —TKEERER
Company: i
The Group REE
2015 2014
—E—hF —ET—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Amounts due from related PR E A T FIE
companies
E-Print Bannershop Limited E-Print Bannershop Limited = 81
E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. E-Print Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 616 398
e-banner Limited e-banner Limited 1,677 =
2,293 479
Certain directors of the Group and the following related AEEETEETRUATHERARIZE
companies are in common. Pursuant to the Hong Kong = o RIBES R REHIZE383(1)(d) Ik -
Companies Ordinance Section 383(1)(d), the maximum RANEEEENT -

amount outstanding are as follows:

2015 2014

—E—FF —FE—JUF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAET

Profit More Rich Limited BHEZHRATA - 1

CTP Limited CTP Limited - 195

Promise Properties Limited IRABEMERR AT - 49

VVV Limited VVV Limited - 47

eprint Limited eprint Limited 11,702 1
The amounts due from related companies are unsecured, BN REE QR IAAEEE - 28
interest-free and are repayable on demand. The fair values RIREREE - ZFHEHBNARE

of these balances approximate their carrying values. EHERmERES °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB R I
34 Related party transactions (continued) 3 BERXZ @
(e) Balances with related parties - Group and (e) HBAELAR - LXTEEREALD
Company: (Continued) "] (&)
The Group (Continued) REEE)
2015 AN
—E-HF —F-ImF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Amounts due to directors BAESNRE
Mr. She Siu Kee RIBETE 50 50
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai wEETE 20 20
Mr. Fung Hong Keung SRR T E 20 20
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki HEHEEAE 35 35
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MRRELAE 35 35
Mr. Leung Wai Ming AR S A 35 35
Mr. Leung Yat pang 2—g A 35 35
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen SRR A 30 30
Mr. Chan Chi Yu REMEE 30 30
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah BEE L 30 30
Ms. Luk Mei Yan xRzt 30 30
350 350
The payable balances with directors are denominated BT E 7 FER SR LUR TTEHE
in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured, interest free and are BAEERR 2B RIREREE -
repayable on demand. The fair values of these balances ZELBH AR BEEAREER
approximate their carrying values. o
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BT BERRM
34 Related party transactions (continued) 3 BERXZ @
(e) Balances with related parties - Group and (e) HBEFER-—FAEBERERD
Company: (Continued) GG,
The Company PN

2015 2014
—E—hF —ET—OF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT TAT

Amount due from a subsidiary  FEUR— i B A T FIE

Promise Network Holding Limited  Promise Network Holding Limited 19,522 19,519
Amounts due from fellow AU EEN ) PR S
subsidiaries

Promise Network Printing Limited {58548 FENRIA R A 7 72,377 72,923

Invoice Limited ERERIGR AR 101 387

Design Easy Limited Xt 5 (FB)BRAF 41 21

72,519 73,338

The amounts due from the ultimate holding company, a FEM R AR IR AR ~ — AT E A R
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- RRAZRMBRRRBREER 2
free and are repayable on demand. The fair values of these BRIZRENRER - ZFHEBRNAR
balances approximate their carrying values. BEEERMEES -

I
2014/15F%  eprint EEER AT 157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BERRME

34 Related party transactions (continued)

158

3 BEAIRZ »)

(e) Balances with related parties - Group and (e) HBAELAR —LTEEREALD

Company: (Continued)
The Company (Continued)

Certain directors of the Company and the following related
companies are in common. Pursuant to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Section 383(1)(d), the maximum
amount outstanding are as follows:

CIRNE )
ARAF(E)

RARRETEENR/RATHER
AlZEE - REFERAFROIE
383(1)(d) ik - R AREEETEN
T

2015 2014
—E-—REF —E—O4E

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

eprint Limited eprint Limited

- 1

Promise Network Holding Limited  Promise Network Holding Limited 34,172 19,580
Promise Network Printing Limited  {R 32548 - ENRIBR A 7 72,984 72,923
Invoice Limited ZRRENRIB R A A 387 387
Design Easy Limited #rt 5 (BR)BRAE a 21
2015 2014
—E2-HF —E—-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET

Amounts due to directors ENEERE
Mr. She Siu Kee REBESLE 50 50
Mr. Tsui Pak Wai RIAIE SR E 20 20
Mr. Fung Hong Keung SRR A 20 20
Mr. Chong Cheuk Ki e 35 35
Mr. Lam Shing Kai MREAEL A 35 35
Mr. Leung Wai Ming AR S A 35 35
Mr. Leung Yat pang 2—HeotE 35 35
Mr. Chi Man Shing Stephen TR A 30 30
Mr. Chan Chi Yu BREWSE 30 30
Dr. Lung Cheuk Wah BEEEE L 30 30
Ms. Luk Mei Yan BEEBR L+ 30 30
350 350

The payable balances with directors are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured, interest free and are
repayable on demand. The fair values of these balances
approximate their carrying values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& Ot B ot

35 Subsequent event 35 REWABREH
Acquisition of an additional interest of a company which was WE—HREIBEAEELENRATZ
originally classified as a joint venture FIMESRS ©
Subsequent to year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has BE_Z—ARAF=A=+—"HItFE
acquired 11% shareholding in e-banner Limited from the other % REBRIS AL CEBHWE
joint venture partner at a consideration, subject to adjustment, e-banner Limited 11%#% - HRER
of HK$1,100,000. 1,100,000 7T (7] T A %) ©

I
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Five-year Financial Summary

A FMBHME

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HE —TNF —T—=F —T——F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET THT FHTT BT
Results E4
Year ended 31 March BEZ=A=+—H
LEE
Profit attributable to equity AR FEZFEA A
holders of the Company FELH 55 A 32,335 21,577 42,438 39,773 22,912
Assets and liabilities BEERERE
As at 31 March R=B=+—H
Total assets BEMRE 237,849 253,070 191,956 175,494 144,466
Total liabilities BEEsE (76,850) (88,276) (120,031) (107,479) (105,675)
Net assets BEFTE 160,999 164,794 71,925 68,015 38,791
The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the years ended #HZE-—ZT——4F - —ZT——F K -FT— =4

31 March 2011, 2012 and 2013 which were extracted from the =A==+ —HI|IIEFENXEREAENAERE
Company’s prospectus dated 20 November 2013 have been prepared ZE (fFsEEa A ARIEH AT —=4+—A
on a combined basis to indicate the results of the Group as if the —+HMBREFR) HIEEEAEERE - [
Group structure, at the time the Company’s shares were listed on the  Z&E/R 7N B #9248 OB a0 AR A B AL (9 A B 28 B
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, had been in existence throughout ik FHiFAEEEBENBEZZSFED T
those years. 7)o
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